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October 14, 2013 
 
To the Citizens of Black Hawk College: 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Black Hawk College, Community 
College District No. 503, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, is hereby submitted.  
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of 
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the College.  To the best of our 
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and operations 
results of the College.  All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the College’s financial activities in relation to its mission, vision, and 
goals have been included.  In addition, this letter of transmittal should be read in 
conjunction with the management’s discussion and analysis which immediately 
follows the independent auditor’s report and focuses on current activities, accounting 
changes, and currently known facts. 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in five sections: 
introductory, financial, statistical, special reports, and management information.  The 
introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a list of principal officials and the 
College’s organizational chart.  The financial section includes the report of our 
independent public accountants, management’s discussion and analysis, the basic 
financial statements, and notes to the financial statements.  The statistical section 
includes selected unaudited financial and demographic information, generally 
presented on a multi-year basis.  The special reports section includes the Uniform 
Financial Statements, grants and enrollment audits required by the Illinois Community 
College Board (ICCB) together with the related auditor’s reports, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards and the related notes together with the related 
auditor’s reports.  The management information section contains financial information 
by fund and budget to actual information utilized by the Board of Trustees and College 
management. 
 
The College maintains its accounts and prepares its financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as set forth by Governmental and Financial Accounting Standards Boards 
(GASB and FASB) and the Illinois Community College Board (ICCB).  The financial 
records of the District are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting whereby all 
revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have 
been reduced to a legal obligation to pay. 
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The notes to the financial statements expand and explain the financial statements and the 
accounting principles applied.  The financial statements have been audited by our independent 
auditors, Wipfli LLP.  Their report is included as part of this financial presentation. 

 
College Profile 

Black Hawk College was established in 1946 and was granted official accreditation by the North 
Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools in March of 1951.  Today, Community 
College District No. 503 is comprised of portions of nine Illinois counties which include: Rock 
Island, Henry, Mercer, Whiteside, Henderson, Knox, Bureau, Stark, and Marshall.   
 
Black Hawk operates two primary campuses as well as other instructional centers throughout 
the District and serves a population in excess of 220,000.  The College’s Quad-Cities Campus 
is located on 149 wooded acres in Moline, Illinois while the College’s East Campus is located on 
a 102-acre site in Galva, Illinois.   
 
The average Fall semester head count is 6,362 from 2004 to 2013.  The College experienced a 
slight decrease in total credit hours in fiscal year 2013 of 2,197.4, which includes both restricted 
and unrestricted credit hours.  This was a decrease of 1.6%; however, the College expects 
credit hours to remain relatively level in the upcoming fiscal year as the local economy 
continues to rebound and new programs and services are offered. 
 
The District’s principal employers are presented in the statistical section of this report.  The 
Quad Cities area is considered a diverse business region and the long-term economic outlook 
for the region and the College is viewed as favorable.  Furthermore, while the district as a whole 
has not been immune to recent economic forces, property values have remained steady and the 
district unemployment rate has routinely been below the state and national rates as published 
by the US Bureau of Labor Statistics.  
 

Mission, Vision, and Goals 

The mission of Black Hawk College is to provide the environment and resources for individuals 
to become lifelong learners. 
 
The vision of the College is to position Black Hawk College as the preferred choice for 
education and training through total accessibility, quality instructional programs, student-
centered services, and strategic alliances.  The following strategic priorities have been 
established to aid in the process of accomplishing both the mission and vision of the College: 

 Learning Excellence – Provide and support a quality educational experience by which 
students are motivated to learn and faculty contribute positively to teaching and learning 
through their strengths in subject matter knowledge and personal interest in the success 
of all learners. 

 Engaging Learners and the Community – Black Hawk College will engage learners 
and the community in lifelong learning. 

 Accountability – Black Hawk College will achieve performance excellence through an 
environment of continuous improvement, accountability, and data-informed decision 
making. 

 Resource Optimization – Black Hawk College will optimize financial, physical, and 
technological assets. 

 Networking Employees – Black Hawk College will attract, develop and retain high-
quality employees 

2



Major Initiatives 

The College completed its most recent strategic planning process during fiscal year 2011 and 
developed new strategic priorities and supporting goals for 2011-2014.  The following objectives 
have been developed in order to accomplish the before mentioned strategic priorities: 

 Learner Success 
 Workforce Development 
 Engaged Learning 
 Student Engagement 
 Community Engagement 
 Continuous Improvement 
 Academic Analytics 
 Financial Stability 
 Physical Upgrades 
 Technology Infrastructure 
 Networking Employees 

 
In addition to these strategic objectives, the College has also undertaken several major 
operational initiatives.  These initiatives include: 

 Achieving re-accreditation in 2013 
 Increasing employee development opportunities 
 Developing an institutional facilities master plan 
 Continually balancing the budget 
 Refreshing and enhancing both the information technology and instructional facilities of 

the College 
 
The College also continues to review its course offerings and implement new programs that 
meet the above mentioned strategic priorities and better serve the District.  For example, the 
College issued bonds during fiscal year 2013 to allow for the construction of a Health Sciences 
building on the Quad Cities campus and a Welding and Skilled Trades Center near the 
Community Education Center in Kewanee. Additionally, the College has increased outreach 
efforts to the K-12 schools within our district for the purposes of growing dual credit and dual 
enrollment programs as well as generating awareness of college readiness requirements.  
Finally, the College is continuing to review the various completion and performance based 
funding proposals being discussed at both the state and national level for the purposes of 
determining potential impact and identifying process/program modifications needed. 
 
Local Economy 

Black Hawk College has three primary sources of Operating Funds revenue: Tuition and Fees, 
State Funding, and local Property Taxes.   
 
Tuition and fee revenues accounted for approximately 44% of total operating revenue received 
in fiscal year 2013.  As illustrated in the Statistical section of this document, total credit hours for 
all categories, which includes both restricted and unrestricted hours, decreased by 1.6% in fiscal 
year 2013.  However, fiscal year 2014 credit hours are budgeted to remain relatively flat over 
fiscal year 2013 as the College looks to expand program offerings as well as improve retention 
and persistence rates. 
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State funding, which accounted for approximately 23% of total non-operating revenue received, 
continues to be problematic for the College as the level of state funding continues to decline and 
delays in receipt of allocated funds continue to increase.  The College anticipates funding levels 
will continue to decline in future years primarily due to fluctuations in the allocation of the ICCB 
Equalization Grant.  The average ICCB credit hour reimbursement rate remains markedly lower 
than rates realized more than a decade ago.  Additionally, performance based funding 
discussions are currently underway in Illinois and the exact impact of funding formula changes 
is unknown at this time.  These funding concerns have prompted the College to raise tuition and 
fee rates as well as cut spending on certain programs. 
 
Property taxes, which accounted for approximately 45% of total non-operating revenue 
received, are levied each year for all taxable real property in the District on the basis of the 
equalized assessed property values (EAV).  Assessed values are established by each of the 
nine respective counties within the district.  The subsequent property taxes are billed and 
collected by each county.  Property tax revenue continues to hold relatively stable as equalized 
assessed values in the District have been increasing steadily over the past several years 
despite the national economic crisis and subsequent impact on property values. 
 

Financial Planning 

The College has taken several steps to offset the negative impact of inadequate state funding 
and enrollment fluctuations.  These steps include: 

 Cost containment and reduction of departmental budgets 
 Greater focus on alternative sources of revenue 
 Tuition and fee increases 
 Review and redesign of key business processes and technology to improve efficiency 
 Implementation of new programs to strengthen enrollment 
 More aggressive curriculum and outreach development 

 
In addition, the College utilizes its Financial Plan, presented to the Board of Trustees, to ensure 
focus and attention is given to critical areas in a more efficient manner.  This financial planning 
process is coordinated with the budget preparation process. The current financial plan covers 
fiscal year 2014 through 2016 and focuses on four main objectives: 

 Implementation of a revenue management strategy 
 Development and implementation of a systematic, repeatable process for evaluating the 

financial contribution of all programs and services offered by the College 
 Development and implementation of a sustainable process for allocating scholarships, 

grants, and waivers 
 Identification, development, and implementation of a master plan funding strategy 

 
Enrollment trends and course demand are the most significant influence given the core mission 
of the institution.  Consequently, it is imperative the College focus on strategically aligning 
financial resources to these demands in an effort to maximize return on investment for students, 
taxpayers, community members, and other stakeholders.  To this end, the College implemented 
Budgeting for Outcomes through which the College fosters a culture of innovation and 
partnership, demonstrates performance and accountability, selects priorities based on 
measurable results, and achieves transparency of all allocations. 
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The annual budget, adopted as balanced, indicates all resources received are subsequently 
expended during the same fiscal year in a manner consistent with the mission of the institution.  
As such, any disruption in the timely receipt of budgeted resources has the potential to 
adversely influence program and service delivery.  As a result, the College must define and 
acknowledge potential resources and maintain an efficient cash flow strategy for minimizing the 
impact of delayed or eliminated funding sources. 
 
Finally, the College’s capital budgeting process is designed to provide a systematic, repeatable 
method to identify, prioritize, approve, and fund both capital projects and non-capital fixed 
assets.  In conjunction with this capital budgeting process, the College focuses on ensuring 
timely expenditure of existing bond proceeds in a manner consistent with statutory requirements 
and approved purposes.  Furthermore, the Board remains committed to effective and efficient 
management of the property tax levy, which requires the College proactively and effectively 
manage its debt strategies. 
 
Black Hawk College recognizes the importance of financial transparency and accountability and 
is committed to maximizing return on investment for students, employees, taxpayers, and the 
community.  The College remains dedicated to balancing the budget annually as well as 
providing an annual update on the status of the Financial Plan.  The current Financial Plan is 
designed to achieve results and continue to strengthen programs and services offered as well 
as the financial viability of the institution. 
 
Internal Controls 

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
controls to ensure compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.  
Internal controls are designed to limit the College’s exposure to risks, safeguard the College’s 
assets from theft or misuse, and provide adequate documentation for the preparation of the 
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as well as 
accounting standards mandated by the ICCB.  Internal controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance these objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes the cost of the control should not exceed the expected benefits and 
estimates and judgments by management are required for valuation of the costs and benefits.  
Internal controls are continuously monitored, reviewed and updated to ensure ongoing efficiency 
and effectiveness. 
 
Budgetary Controls 

The College maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied 
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the College’s Board of Trustees.  The legal level 
of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the budgeted 
amount) is established at the fund level.  The College maintains an encumbrance accounting 
system as one technique to accomplish budgetary control.  Encumbered amounts lapse at year-
end unless extenuating circumstances exist.  Statements of budgetary comparison are 
presented in the Management Information section of this document. 
 
Fund Balance Policy 

The Board of Trustees adopted a fund balance policy designed to ensure the maintenance of 
adequate reserves and protect against unanticipated events that would adversely affect the 
financial condition of the College and jeopardize the continuation of necessary programs and 
services.   
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This policy requires the College to maintain an unrestricted General Fund ending fund balance 
of an amount between seventeen (17) and twenty-five (25) percent of budgeted expenses in 
these funds.  Additionally, if the ending fund balance falls below the target range, the College is 
required to replenish the ending fund balance within two (2) years.  If the ending fund balance 
exceeds the target range, the College shall first, allow the President to expend the excess funds 
on capital expenses after considering recommendations from the President’s Cabinet and 
second, review additional investment options that would allow the College to earn a greater rate 
of return. 
 
As of June 30, 2013 the General Fund ending fund balance is 29.6% of fiscal year 2013 
expenses. 
 
Risk Management 

The College is self-insured for its health insurance claims.  The claims are administered by an 
external third party administrator.  In addition, the College maintains stop loss coverage of 
$125,000 specific and $6,027,455 aggregate with a major insurance carrier for medical and 
dental claims that exceed these thresholds.  The College also maintains adequate reserves to 
cover potential losses and the reserves are reviewed regularly to determine appropriateness.   
 
Other Information 

 Independent audit  State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public 
accountants.  The accounting firm of Wipfli, LLP was selected by the College to perform 
the fiscal year 2013 audit.  The auditor’s report on the financial statements and 
schedules is unqualified and is included in the financial section of this report. 

 Awards  The College received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting (CAFR) from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for the 
fiscal years 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012.  In addition, the College has received the 
GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for fiscal years 2009, 2010, 2011, 
2012, and 2013. 

 Acknowledgements   We wish to thank the members of the Board of Trustees for their 
interest and support in conducting District financial operations to the degree of 
excellence necessary for continuance of operations in a responsible manner. 

 
The timely preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was made possible by 
the continued, dedicated service of Black Hawk College’s Accounting Services staff and others 
connected with the annual audit process.  Our sincere appreciation goes out to each individual 
making contributions in the preparation of this report. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

    
Dr. Thomas B. Baynum     Leslie T. Anderson 
President       Vice President for Finance 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Introduction 

This section of Black Hawk College’s (College) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the College’s financial activity during the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012.  Since this Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to 
focus on current activities, resulting change, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction 
with the College’s basic financial statements.  Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this 
information rests with the College. 
 
 
Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements focus on the College as a whole versus traditional presentation by fund 
types.  The College’s financial statements are designed to emulate corporate presentation models 
whereby all of the College’s activities are consolidated into one total. 
 
 
The purpose of the Statement of Net Position is to present the bottom line results of the College.  
This statement combines and consolidates current financial resources with capital assets.  It presents 
assets, liabilities and net position at the end of the fiscal year.  The Statement of Net Position requires 
the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories.  The difference 
between total assets and total liabilities is reflected in the net position section which reflects net 
position in three broad categories:  invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted.  Net position is one indicator of the current financial condition of the College, while the 
change in net position is one indicator of whether the overall financial condition of the College has 
improved or deteriorated during the year.  Restrictions, commitments or other limitations may affect 
the availability of fund resources for future use. 
 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position focuses on both the gross 
costs and the net costs of the College’s activities, which are supported mainly by tuition, local property 
taxes, and state revenues.  It presents the revenues, expenses and transfer activities that occurred 
during the fiscal year.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position requires 
the classification of revenues and expenses as operating and non-operating.  Property taxes and 
state funding are reported as non-operating revenues, for example.  
 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents the inflow and outflow of cash collected and disbursed by 
the College for the fiscal year.  It separates the sources and uses of funds by the major categories of 
operating, capital and related financing, non-capital financing and investing activities.  This statement 
emphasizes the College’s dependence on state and local sources by separating them from operating 
cash flows. 
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Financial Highlights 

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the College recorded total operating revenues of $17,384,760 and 
total operating expenses of $54,625,108.  The difference produced an operating loss of $37,240,348.  
Net non-operating revenue of $41,478,043 offsets this loss and results in an overall increase in net 
position of $4,237,695. 
 
Non-operating revenue included local property taxes of $19,119,399, state grants and contracts of 
$9,562,931, federal grants and contracts of $10,099,071, and other net miscellaneous revenue of 
$2,696,642. 
 
Operating revenue accounted for 29% of the College’s total revenue, while non-operating revenues 
accounted for the other 71% of the College’s total revenue.  Operating revenue consisted of tuition 
and fees, net of financial aid awards, totaling $7,613,048, sales, services, and rentals of facilities 
revenues totaling $2,236,204, and the SURS contribution provided by the state, on behalf of the 
College, to the State University Retirement System (SURS) totaling $7,535,508.  The comparable 
contribution by the state to SURS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was $5,373,730. 
 
Operating expenses accounted for 99% of the College’s total expenses, while non-operating 
expenses accounted for the remaining 1%.  Operating expenses consisting of instruction, academic 
support, student services, public service, financial aid, operations of physical facilities, institutional 
support and other categories increased 5% in fiscal year 2013. 
 
Overall, the College’s financial position remained stable during fiscal year 2013 despite continued 
delays in State funding and a slight decrease in enrollment.  Enrollment, credit hour, and State 
funding trend information are provided in the Statistical section of this document.  Additionally, overall 
fiscal year 2013 results compared to budget were favorable.  Details by fund can be found in the 
Management Information section of this document. 
 
Long-Term Debt 

The College issued $20 million in bonds during fiscal year 2013 to expand and renovate facilities on 
both the Quad Cities and East Campuses.  The College will break ground on a new $15 million health 
sciences facility at the Quad Cities Campus during FY14 and will construct a new Welding and Skilled 
Trades Center near the Community Education Center in Kewanee, Illinois during FY14 as well. 
Remaining bond proceeds will be used to expand agriculture related facilities at the East Campus in 
Galva, Illinois during FY15. The unused legal debt capacity of the College is currently $69,541,633, 
which represents 2.875% of the assessed valuation of the College’s district less the $32,715,000 in 
outstanding debt.  See Note 6 regarding Long-Term Liabilities in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements for further information. 
 
Economic Factors 

Unemployment rates, both locally and nationally, have remained elevated in recent years.  Our local 
economy has suffered from business closures as well as layoffs, although this trend appears to be 
declining.  While unemployment rates within the district vary by county, the district rate decreased 
slightly from 2012 and appears to be maintaining a level lower than the national rate.  Additional 
information regarding unemployment rate trends can be found in the Statistical section of this 
document. 
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Property tax revenue accounts for 32% of total revenue and is a direct result of Equalized Assessed 
Valuations (EAV) in the district.  While many districts have experienced sizable decreases in EAV 
over the past few years, the Black Hawk College district EAV remains stable as overall property 
values continue to increase, albeit slightly.  Additional information regarding EAV and estimated actual 
property values within the district can be found in the Statistical section of this document.   
 
The State of Illinois continues to struggle financially and delays in receipt of appropriated funding have 
continued.  The College remains optimistic all monies will eventually be received, but cautious with 
regards to expenditures and firmly dedicated to maintaining acceptable reserves to minimize 
disruption.  Black Hawk experienced a decrease in both State and Federal funding during fiscal year 
2013, $780,000 of which is due to decreased Pell Grant awards.  State funding reductions consist of 
decreased MAP funding, lack of appropriations for Illinois Veterans, and Illinois National Guard 
Grants, and the reduction in other State grant awards from fiscal year 2012.  
 
Due to the countercyclical nature of higher education, the College had experienced sizable enrollment 
growth over in fiscal years 2010 and 2011; however this trend has subsided as total credit hours 
generated during fiscal year 2012 fell 1% with an additional decrease of 1.6% during fiscal year 2013.  
As a community college, Black Hawk is well positioned to serve displaced workers seeking to 
enhance existing skills or develop additional skills necessary to re-enter the workforce due to the 
relatively short-term nature of many programs offered.  Furthermore, both the College Administration 
and Board of Trustees are committed to ensuring student needs are effectively met and to this end, 
the institution prides itself on being nimble and capable of efficiently implementing programmatic 
changes designed to maximize student success.   
 
Given the decreased enrollment trend in recent years, the College Administration and Board of 
Trustees have taken the appropriate measures to identify opportunities for growth.  As a result the 
College will be constructing two new facilities during fiscal year 2014; a health sciences facility at the 
Quad Cities Campus, and a Welding and Skilled Trades Center in Kewanee.  The addition of these 
two buildings will increase enrollment capacity, thus providing a greater opportunity for generating 
credit hours.     
 
Other Significant Financial Factors 

The Board of Trustees adopts tuition and fee rates each February with the adopted rates becoming 
effective for the Summer, Fall, and Spring semesters of the upcoming fiscal year.  Tuition rates for 
fiscal year 2013 increased 9.1% over fiscal year 2012 rates and will increase by an additional 7% for 
fiscal year 2014.  Beginning with FY14, tuition and fees have been combined into one all-inclusive 
tuition rate. Additional information regarding tuition and fee rate trend is provided in the Statistical 
section.   
 
The Board of Trustees adopts the annual tax levy by January of each year for tax revenues to be 
received during the upcoming fiscal year.  The fiscal year 2012 tax levy increased .8% over fiscal year 
2012 primarily due to the increase in EAV throughout the district.  Additional information regarding tax 
levy trend is provided in the Statistical section. 
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Comparative Net Position – Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012 

2013 2012
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Current Assets  $  75,066,923  $  63,318,537  $11,748,386 18.6%
Non-Current Assets      47,887,133      39,384,710      8,502,423 21.6%
Total Assets  $122,954,056  $102,703,247  $20,250,809 19.7%

Current Liabilities  $    9,411,607  $    8,601,816  $     809,791 9.4%
Non-Current Liabilities      30,995,859      15,070,786    15,925,073 105.7%
Total Liabilities  $  40,407,466  $  23,672,602  $16,734,864 70.7%

Deferred Inflows of Resources  $       261,812  $       983,562  $    (721,750) -73.4%

Net Position
    Net Investment in Capital Assets  $  36,808,792  $  33,387,782  $  3,421,010 10.2%
    Restricted      43,773,893      34,787,857      8,986,036 25.8%
    Unrestricted        1,702,093        9,871,444     (8,169,351) -82.8%
Total Net Position  $  82,284,778  $  78,047,083  $  4,237,695 5.4%  

 
The College had a net position at the beginning of the fiscal year totaling $78,047,083.  The increase 
in net position of $4,237,695 brought the total net position at the end of fiscal year 2013 to 
$82,284,778.   
 
Notable changes in fiscal year 2013 include the addition of the Student Services Center to Building 1 
on the Quad Cities Campus and the construction of the Ag Sciences Building on the East Campus.  
Additionally, Non-Current Liabilities increased significantly as a result of a $20 million bond issuance 
to construct a $15 million health sciences facility at the Quad Cities Campus and a new Welding and 
Skilled Trades Center near the Community Education Center in Kewanee, Illinois. 
 
This schedule is prepared from the College’s Statement of Net Position, which is presented on a full 
accrual basis of accounting whereby assets costing $5,000 or greater are capitalized and depreciated. 

 
Net Position - Fiscal Year 2013 

 

Net Capital 
Assets
44.7%

(42.8% FY12)

Unrestricted
2.1%

(27.7% FY12)

Restricted
53.2%

(29.5% FY12)
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Comparison of Net Capital Assets 
Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012 

 

Capital Assets 2013 2012
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

    Land and Improvements $7,480,023 $5,857,925 $1,622,098 27.7%
    Building and Improvements 52,148,650 42,670,482 9,478,168 22.2%
    Equipment 7,503,695 6,504,620 999,075 15.4%
    Construction In Progress 3,896,185 5,920,458 -2,024,273 -34.2%
Total Capital Assets $71,028,553 $60,953,485 $10,075,068 16.5%

Less Accumulated Depreciation 23,141,420 21,568,775 1,572,645 7.3%

Net Capital Assets $47,887,133 $39,384,710 $8,502,423 21.6%  
 
As of June 30, 2013, the College has recorded $71,028,553 invested in capital assets, $23,141,420 in 
accumulated depreciation and $47,887,133 in net capital assets.   
 
Total Capital Assets increased $10,075,068 or 16.5% and Net Capital Assets increased $8,502,423 or 
21.6% due to the addition of the Student Services Center and Ag Sciences Building as well as several 
other remodeling and improvement projects during fiscal year 2013.  The current bonding strategy 
continues to allow the College to invest in additional facilities, technology, and improvements.  The 
expectation exists that Net Capital Assets will continue to increase in future years as a result.  See 
Note 4. Changes in Capital Assets and Note 6. Long-Term Liabilities in the Notes to Financial 
Statements for further information. 

 
Capital Assets - Fiscal Year 2013 

 

Buildings & 
Improvements

73.4%
(70.0% FY12)

Equipment
10.6%

(10.7% FY12)

Construction in 
Process

5.5%
(9.7% FY12)

Land & 
Improvements

10.5%
(9.6% FY12)
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Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position 

For the fiscal years ending June 30, 

2013 2012
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Operating Revenue:
    Tuition and Fees $   7,613,048 $   6,609,902 $ 1,003,146 15.2%
    Sales, Services, and Rentals       2,236,204       2,481,502       (245,298) -9.9%
    Other       7,535,508       5,376,216     2,159,292 40.2%
Total Operating Revenue $ 17,384,760 $ 14,467,620 $ 2,917,140 20.2%

Less: Operating Expenses     54,625,108     51,951,420     2,673,688 5.1%
Operating Income (Loss) $(37,240,348) $(37,483,800) $    243,452 -0.6%

Non-operating Revenue: 
    State Grants & Contracts  $   9,562,931  $ 10,578,684  $(1,015,753) -9.6%
    Federal Grants & Contracts     10,099,071     10,875,102       (776,031) -7.1%
    Property Taxes    19,119,399    19,171,402        (52,003) -0.3%
    Other Income       2,696,642       2,903,995       (207,353) -7.1%
Total Non-operating Revenue: $ 41,478,043 $ 43,529,183 $(2,051,140) -4.7%

Increase in Net Position  $   4,237,695  $   6,045,383  $(1,807,688) -29.9%
Net Position, Beginning of Year    78,047,083    72,001,700    6,045,383 8.4%
Net Position, End of Year  $ 82,284,778  $ 78,047,083  $ 4,237,695 5.4%  
 
Both operating revenue and expense for fiscal year 2013 were higher than fiscal year 2012.  
 
Tuition and fees increased $1,003,146 or 15.2%, a portion of which can be attributed to additional 
improvements in the breakdown of summer tuition into the appropriate period as a result of the 
summer term crossing fiscal years.  While enrollment decreased slightly from fiscal year 2012, higher 
tuition and fee rates in conjunction with the more accurate accounting for summer courses provided a 
net increase in tuition revenue over fiscal year 2012. 
 
Additionally, the increase in Other Operating Revenue represents the increased SURS contribution 
provided by the State in fiscal year 2013, which was $2,159,292 greater than the fiscal year 2012 
amount.  As explained in Note 5 in the Notes to Financial Statements, this SURS contribution is 
shown as operating revenue and operating expense by the College.  Pending State legislation has the 
potential to impact the manner in which these obligations are funded and reported in future years 
although the exact impact is currently unknown. 
 
Non-operating revenue decreased in total by $2,051,140.  The primary driver of this decrease was the 
$1,015,753 decrease in State Grants & Contracts due to decreased MAP funding, lack of 
appropriations for Illinois Veterans and National Guard grants, and the elimination of a few other 
grants received in previous fiscal years.  The $776,031 decrease in Federal Grants & Contracts is a 
direct result of a $783,000 decrease in Pell Grant awards.  The additional decrease of $207,000 in 
other income is a direct result of lower investment earnings. 
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Operating Revenues - Fiscal Year 2013 

 

 
 

Non-Operating Revenues - Fiscal Year 2013 
 
 

Tuition and Fees
43.8%

(45.7% FY12)

Auxiliary
12.9%
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43.3%
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24.4%
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Comparison of Operating Expenses 

Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012 
 

2013 2012
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Operating Expenses:
    Instruction  $19,814,071  $16,728,066  $3,086,005 18.4%
    Academic Support      6,244,734      5,849,304       395,430 6.8%
    Student Services      4,265,652      4,050,637       215,015 5.3%
    Public Service / Continuing Ed.      1,879,087      2,198,600     (319,513) -14.5%
    Sales, Services, and Rentals of Facilities      3,823,167      3,829,286         (6,119) -0.2%
    Institutional Support    10,346,257      9,905,024       441,233 4.5%
    Financial Aid      2,401,499      2,747,946     (346,447) -12.6%
    Operations of Physical Facilities      4,232,592      5,217,830     (985,238) -18.9%
    Loss on Disposal of Equipment           16,664             5,451         11,213 205.7%
    Depreciation      1,601,385      1,419,276       182,109 12.8%
Total Operating Expenses:  $54,625,108  $51,951,420  $2,673,688 5.1%

 
 
Operating expenses for fiscal year 2013 increased by 5.1% from fiscal year 2012.  While the 
significant changes are discussed below, it should also be noted that several of the individual expense 
categories were impacted by the College’s review and update of the methodologies and processes 
utilized for assigning programmatic classifications during fiscal year 2013. One significant change 
includes the allocation of the SURS contribution provided by the state among the existing functions as 
opposed to being listed separately. 
 
Instruction expenses increased $3,086,005 as a result of capital improvements during the year that 
had a direct instructional impact as well as the allocation of the SURS contribution provided by the 
state. 
 
Financial Aid decreased by $346,447 due to decreased PELL funding. 
 
Public Service / Continuing Ed expenses decreased $319,513 due in part to high expenses in the 
Employer Training Investment Program (ETIP) and Technology Innovation and Entrepreneurship 
Specialty (TIES) grants during FY12, neither of which the College received in FY13.  
 
Depreciation expense increased by $182,109 in the current year as a direct result of two building 
additions completed during fiscal year 2013 in addition to equipment purchases. 
 
Operating of Physical Facilities decreased $985,238 as a result of more closely aligning programmatic 
expenses to the ICCB Fiscal Management Manual requirements.  The allocation of the SURS 
contribution provided by the state also played a role in this decrease. 

 
In addition, a sizable increase in the SURS contribution provided by the state occurred as the fiscal 
year 2013 amount was $2,161,778 greater than the fiscal year 2012 amount.  As noted above, the 
SURS contribution is allocated among the various functions reported above and as a result 
contributes to the variances noted above.  See also Note 5 in the Notes to Financial Statements for 
additional information related to this SURS contribution.   
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The following graphic illustration shows the operating expenses by program for fiscal year 2013 by 
percentage of the total with the comparable percentage for fiscal year 2012 in parenthesis.  For both 
years, the largest percentage of College money was spent on Instruction. 
 
                      

Operating Expenses - Fiscal Year 2013 
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Requests for Information  

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of Black Hawk 
College’s finances and to show Black Hawk College’s accountability for the revenue it receives.  If you 
have questions about this report or need additional information, please contact: 
 

Leslie T. Anderson 
Vice President for Finance 
6600 34th Avenue 
Moline, IL 61265 
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Statement of Net Position

Primary
Government Component Units

Black Hawk Black Hawk
Black Hawk College East College

College Foundation Foundation
Assets
Current Assets:
   Cash and cash equivalents 55,531,552$     174,095$         330,912$          
   Investments -                   2,450,552       1,520,126          
   Receivables:

Property taxes, net of $19,217 12,738,175      -                   -                    
Federal government claims 773,999           -                   -                    
State of Illinois claims 3,960,290        -                   -                    
Student tuition and fees, net of $163,160 932,517           -                   -                    
Other 396,699           96,243            22,587              

   Inventory 498,536           -                   -                    
   Prepaid expenses 235,155           -                   -                    

Total current assets 75,066,923        2,720,890         1,873,625          

Noncurrent Assets:
  Capital assets:

Land 758,221           76,693            373,519            
Construction and Equipment in process 3,896,185        -                   -                    
Building, improvements and equipment, net of
   $23,141,420 and $731,486, respectively 43,232,727      -                   1,110,151          

Total capital assets, net of depreciation 47,887,133        76,693              1,483,670          
Total noncurrent assets 47,887,133        76,693              1,483,670          
Total assets 122,954,056      2,797,583         3,357,295          

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 2,480,748        12,212            21,621              
  Accrued liabilities:

Payroll 955,058           -                   -                    
Early retirement 81,397             -                   -                    
Accrued vacation 120,000           -                   -                    
Other 362,377           -                   -                    

  Unearned revenues:
Student tuition and fees 235,869             -                    -                     

  Notes and bonds due in less than one year 5,150,000        -                   17,495              
  Other liabilities 26,158             -                   -                    

Total current liabilities 9,411,607          12,212              39,116               

Noncurrent Liabilities:
  Early retirement 1,754,469        -                   -                    
  Accrued vacation 834,132           -                   -                    
  Notes and bonds payable in more than one year 28,407,258      -                   496,421            

Total noncurrent liabilities 30,995,859        -                    496,421             
Total liabilities 40,407,466        12,212              535,537             

Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Grants and restricted funds 261,812             -                    -                     

Total deferred inflows of resources 261,812             -                    -                     

Net Position
   Net Investment in capital assets 36,808,792      -                   969,754            
   Restricted for audit 200,222           -                   -                    
   Restricted for liability, protection and settlement 2,402,140        -                   -                    
   Restricted for working cash 10,194,190      -                   -                    
   Restricted for bond & interest 2,973,723        -                   -                    
   Restricted for operations and maintenance 27,508,249      -                   -                    
   Restricted for grants and scholarships 495,369           2,139,906       1,748,543          
   Unrestricted 1,702,093        645,465          103,461            

Total net position 82,284,778$     2,785,371$      2,821,758$        

See Notes to Financial Statements.

June 30, 2013
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Primary
Government Component Units

Black Hawk Black Hawk
Black Hawk College East College

College Foundation Foundation
Operating Revenues:

Student tuition and fees, net of 7,613,048$         -$                 -$                  
  scholarship awards
Sales, service and rental of 2,236,204           -                   -                    

  facilities and equipment

SURS contribution provided by state 7,535,508           -                   -                    
Total operating revenues 17,384,760         -                   -                    

Operating expenses:

Instruction 19,814,071         -                   -                    

Academic support 6,244,734           -                   -                    

Student services 4,265,652           -                   -                    

Public service 1,879,087           -                   -                    

Auxiliary services 3,823,167           -                   -                    

Institutional support 10,346,257         243,041           265,042             
Scholarships, student grants and waivers 2,401,499           91,227             102,713             
Operation of physical facilities 4,232,592           -                   -                    
Loss on disposal of equipment 16,664               -                   -                    
Depreciation and amortization 1,601,385           -                   54,659               

Total operating expenses 54,625,108         334,268           422,414             

Operating (loss) (37,240,348)       (334,268)          (422,414)            

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Property taxes 19,119,399         -                   -                    
Personal property replacement taxes 1,346,184           -                   -                    
State government sources 9,562,931           -                   -                    
Federal government sources 10,099,071         -                   -                    
Investment earnings 848,082              244,119           194,651             
Other sources 1,281,102           426,961           604,700             
Interest expense (778,726)            -                   (26,852)              

Total non-operating
  revenues (expenses) 41,478,043         671,080           772,499             

Change in net position 4,237,695           336,812           350,085             

Net position:
Beginning 78,047,083         2,448,559        2,471,673          
Ending 82,284,778$       2,785,371$      2,821,758$        

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Cash Flows

Primary
Government

Black Hawk
College

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Tuition and fees 7,198,585$      
Payments to employees (24,302,281)     
Payments to suppliers (20,106,713)     
Sales, service, and rental of facilities and equipment 2,236,204        
Other receipts -                   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (34,974,205)     

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
State and federal grants and contracts 20,443,982      
Personal property replacement taxes 1,346,184        
Property taxes 18,853,220      

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 40,643,386      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchases of capital assets (10,120,472)     
Proceeds on debt 20,874,052      
Debt issuance costs (786,552)          
Principal paid on debt (4,182,742)       
Interest paid on debt (662,531)          

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
  and related financing activities 5,121,755        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Sale of investments 4,063,339        
Interest received 848,082           

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
  activities 4,911,421        

Net increase (decrease) in cash 15,702,357      

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning 39,829,195      
Ending 55,531,552$   

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
  (Used in) Operating Activities:

Operating loss (37,240,348)$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
  cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,601,385        
Loss on disposal of equipment 16,664             
Changes in assets and liabilities:
  (Increase) decrease in receivables (27,244)            
  (Increase) decrease in inventory 210,937           
  (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 373,578           
  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 323,336           
  Increase (decrease) in accrued expenditures 206,299           
  Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (387,219)          
  Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (51,593)            
     Total adjustments 2,266,143        

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (34,974,205)$  

Noncash, Capital and Related Financing Activities:
SURS contribution paid by state 7,535,508$      

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Voluntary Employees' 
Benefit Association (VEBA) 

Health Benefit Plan
Assets
  Cash 1,977,006$              

Liabilities
  Claims payable 1,154,284                
  Due to others -                           
          Total liabilities 1,154,284                

Net Position, unrestricted 822,722$                 

Additions:
  Employer paid premiums 4,818,000$              
  Employee paid premiums 649,626                   
  Investment earnings 4,443                       
      Total additions 5,472,069$              

Deductions:
  Health and dental claims 5,222,621                
  Administrative 576,710                   
      Total deductions 5,799,331$              

             Change in net position (327,262)                  

Net position:
  Beginning 1,149,984                
  Ending 822,722$                 

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Black Hawk College

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2013
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Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
 
Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization: 
 
Black Hawk College, Illinois Community College District #503 (College) is an Illinois Community College 
operating under the mandates and guidelines of the Illinois Board of Higher Education and the Illinois 
Community College Board (ICCB).  The College offers a wide range of educational opportunities, including 
liberal studies, business training, agricultural studies, continuing education, and community service 
programs.  The College was organized to provide an excellent, affordable alternative in higher education with 
campus locations in Moline and Galva, Illinois and numerous outreach sites. 
 
Significant Accounting Policies: 
 
Financial Reporting Entity:  The College is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees.  Board 
members are elected through general elections to a six-year term. 
 
The College follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus and Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are 
Component Units.  GASB Statement No. 61 amends GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—
and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, while Statement No. 61 and 
Statement No. 39 both amend Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity to provide additional 
guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the College is not financially accountable 
should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
College. 
 
As defined by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its 
discretely presented component units, the Black Hawk College Foundation and the Black Hawk East College 
Foundation. 
 
The two Foundations are legally separate, tax-exempt component units of the College.  The Foundations act 
primarily as fund-raising organizations to supplement the resources that are available to the College in 
support of its programs.  The 8-13 member boards of the Foundations are self-perpetuating and consist of 
graduates and friends of the College.  Although the College does not control the timing or amount of receipts 
from the Foundations, the majority of resources, or income, thereon the Foundations hold and invest are 
restricted to the activities of the College by the donors.  Because these restricted resources held by the 
Foundations can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundations are considered 
component units of the College. 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Black Hawk College Foundation and the Black Hawk East 
Foundation distributed $91,227 and $102,713 respectively, to the College for both restricted and unrestricted 
purposes. 
 
The Foundations are private-not-for-profit organizations that report their financial results under Financial 
Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Statements.  Most significant to the Foundations’ operations and 
reporting model are Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made and Financial Reporting 
for Not-for-Profit-Organizations.  As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are 
different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features.  No modifications have been 
made to the Foundations’ financial information in the College’s financial reporting entity for these differences. 
 
Financial statements for both the Black Hawk College Foundation and Black Hawk East College 
Foundation can be obtained by calling the College at 309-796-5934. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
 
 
Note 1. Operation and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation:  For financial reporting 
purposes, the College is considered a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities.  
Accordingly, the College’s financial statements have been presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized 
when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  All significant intra-College 
transactions have been eliminated.  Non-exchange transactions, in which the College receives value without 
directly giving equal value in return, includes property taxes; federal, state, and local grants; state 
appropriations; and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the period for which the levy is intended to finance.  Revenues from grants, state appropriations, and other 
contributions are recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility 
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be 
used or the fiscal year when the use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the College must 
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the College on a reimbursement basis. 
 
The College has a fiduciary fund type.  Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by a 
governmental unit in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governmental units, and/or other funds.  The College has the following fiduciary fund type: 
 
 Pension (and other employee benefit) trust fund – is the fund type for the College’s health benefit 

plan and is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the business-type activities, using the same 
measurement focus and basis of accounting.  Employee contributions are recognized in the period in 
which the contributions are due.  Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer 
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.  Claims payable are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the health plan.  The fund accounts for the assets of the 
Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (VEBA).  The VEBA was established under Section 
501(C)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The trust provides for payment of health (medical, dental, and 
vision) claims and health plan administrative and other directly related costs. 

 
Classification of Revenues and Expenses:  Operating revenue and expenses include activities that have the 
characteristics of exchange transactions, such as student tuition and fees and sales and services of auxiliary 
enterprises, net of financial aid and scholarship awards, salaries and benefits, and materials and supplies.  
Non-operating revenues and expenses include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 
transactions, such as 1) local property taxes, 2) state appropriations, 3) most federal, state and local grants 
and contracts, and federal appropriations, and 4) gifts and contributions. 
 
Net Position:  Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities.  “Net investment in capital 
assets”, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by any outstanding balances of 
any borrowings, used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  Significant unspent 
proceeds are reported as restricted.  Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed 
on their use either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.  Amounts restricted for working cash are imposed by 
enabling legislation.  However, legislation allows for procedures to abolish this fund and remove those 
restrictions.  Amounts restricted for operations and maintenance are imposed by enabling legislation.  When 
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, the 
College first applies restricted resources. 
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Note 1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Deferred outflows/inflows:  In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a 
separate section of deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  At this time, the College has no items 
that qualify for reporting in this category.   
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
the acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time.    
 
Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Property taxes:  Property taxes are recognized as a receivable at the time they are levied and the current 
taxes receivable represent the 2012 levy.  Property tax revenue recorded on the financial statements relates 
to the 2012 levy.  Property taxes are levied each year on all taxable real property in the College District. 
Property taxes are certified on or before the last Tuesday in December and are attached as an enforceable 
lien on the property as of the preceding January 1.  These taxes become due and collectible in 2013 and are 
collected by the county collectors in the College District who in turn remit to the College District its respective 
share.  An allowance is provided for uncollectible taxes.   
 
Student Tuition and Fees:  Student tuition and fees include all such items assessed against students for 
educational and service purposes. 
 
College Bookstores Inventory:  Inventories of the College bookstores are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out) or market (net realizable value). 
 
Compensated Absences:  Vacation leave is accrued as a liability as it is earned.  Sick leave benefits are not 
payable upon retirement or termination. 
 
Capital Assets:  Capital assets are defined by the College as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $5,000 and an initial useful life of one year or greater.  Assets are recorded at historical cost if 
purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of 
donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. 
 
Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
respective assets.  The estimated useful lives for each capital asset type are as follows: 
 
 Years 
 
 Buildings and improvements 50 
 Land improvements 50 
 Equipment 4 - 10 
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The College’s collection of works of art, library books, and other similar assets are not capitalized.  These 
collections are unencumbered, held for public exhibition and education, protected, cared for, and preserved. 
 
Capital assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
service utility of the capital asset may have significantly and unexpectedly declined.  Capital assets are 
considered impaired if both the decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and the 
event or change in circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset.  Such events or changes 
in circumstances that may be indicative of impairment include evidence of physical damage, enactment or 
approval of laws or regulations or other changes in environmental factors, technological changes or evidence 
of obsolescence, changes in the manner or duration of use of a capital asset, and construction stoppage. 
The determination of the impairment loss is dependent upon the event or circumstance in which the 
impairment occurred.  Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position.  There were no impairment losses recorded for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
 
Investments:  Investments are stated at fair value. 
 
Tax Status:  The College is a political sub-division of the State of Illinois and has nontaxable status under the 
Internal Revenue Code. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents:  For purposes of reporting cash flows, the College considers all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Receivables:  Student accounts receivable are reported net of any anticipated losses due to uncollectible 
accounts.  The College considers students accounts to be past due when a student has an account balance 
after the payment due date for the class.  Past due accounts are subject to past due letter collection efforts 
and are subsequently placed with third-party collection agencies and the State of Illinois Local Debt 
Recovery Program (LDRP).  The collectability of individual accounts is evaluated closely at the end of each 
fiscal year and the allowance for uncollectible accounts is adjusted to a level which, in management’s 
judgment, is adequate to absorb potential losses inherent in the receivable portfolio. 
 
Accounting Pronouncements:  The College is applying all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) pronouncements. 
 
Note 2. Cash and Investments 
 
Under provision of the College’s investment policy, the College may invest in select securities allowed by law 
as set out in Illinois Compiled Statutes.  A summary of allowable securities follows: 
 

 Bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills, or other securities, which are guaranteed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America. 

 

 Bonds, notes debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of America or its 
agencies. 

 

 Interest-bearing savings account, interest-bearing certificates of deposit, or interest-bearing time 
deposits, or other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the Illinois 
Banking Act and only those insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
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 Short-term discount obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association or in shares or other 
forms of security legally issuable by savings and loan associations incorporated under the laws of 
the State of Illinois or any other state or under the laws of the United States and only in those 
savings and loan associations insured by the FDIC. 

 
 Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of government securities or agreements to 

repurchase such obligations. 
 
 Illinois School District Liquid Asset Fund. 
 
 Illinois State Funds Money Market Fund. 
 
 Funds managed, operated and administered by a bank provided that the public agency has an 

undivided interest in the assets of the fund. 
 
 Repurchase agreements of government securities having the meaning set out in the Government 

Securities Act of 1986. 
 
 Dividends-bearing share accounts, share certificate accounts of a credit union with its principal 

office located in Illinois and insured by applicable law. 
 
 Funds managed, operated, and administered by a bank.  

 
 
At June 30, 2013, the College’s cash and cash equivalents balances are as follows: 
 
 Depository accounts, checking and  
   certificates of deposit $55,519,652 
 Petty cash         11,900 
 
   Total cash and cash equivalents 55,531,552 
 
 Fiduciary funds     1,977,006 
 
   Total cash and cash equivalents $57,508,558 
 
 Less:  Petty cash          11,900 
 
   Total carrying amount of deposits $57,496,658 
 
As of June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the College’s deposits totaled $57,496,658 with a bank balance 
of $56,433,054.  Of the $56,433,054 bank balance, $56,433,054 was covered by federal depository 
insurance or collateral held by the College’s agent in the College’s name.  The College has no foreign 
currency risk for deposits at year end. 
 
As of June 30, 2013, the College did not hold any investments. 
 
Interest Rate Risk: 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
changes in market interest rates.  The College tries to match its maturities on investments with expected 
cash flows.  As of June 30, 2013, the College did not hold any investments. 
 
Credit Risk: 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  Investments in U.S. Government obligations and Brokered CDs are not considered to be of 
any credit risk since they carry the full obligation and guarantee of the U.S. Government. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk: 
 
The College has no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total College’s investments. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk: 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a 
transaction, an entity will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of another party. 
 
As of June 30, 2013 there are no investments with custodial credit risk in that all investments are insured. 
 
Foreign Currency Risk: 
 
The College has no foreign currency risk for investments at year end. 
 
 
Note 3. Liability, Protection, & Settlement Fund Expenditures 
 
Black Hawk College had the following Liability, Protection, & Settlement Fund expenditures for the year 
ended June 30, 2013: 
 
 Security & safety related salaries and benefits $   854,133 
 Risk management & loss prevention 328,473 
 Insurance  1,005,246 
 Legal services  138,442 
 Security and safety related      132,018 
 
  Total Liability, Protection & Settlement Fund expenditures $2,458,312 
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Note 4. Changes in Capital Assets 
 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows: 
 

Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions

Balance
June 30, 2013

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 760,862$       $               -   (2,640)$          758,221$       
Construction in process 5,920,458      9,613,555     (11,637,828)   3,896,185      

Total capital assets not
 being depreciated 6,681,320      9,613,555     (11,640,468)   4,654,406      

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 42,670,482    9,478,168     -                 52,148,650    
Land improvements 5,097,063  1,624,738     -                 6,721,802      
Equipment 6,504,620      1,041,839     (42,764)          7,503,695      

Total capital assets
 being depreciated 54,272,165    12,144,745   (42,764)          66,374,147    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 15,923,091    948,138        -                 16,871,229    
Land improvements 773,727         118,191        -                 891,918         
Equipment 4,871,957      535,056        (28,740)          5,378,273      

Total accumulated depreciation 21,568,775    1,601,385     (28,740)          23,141,420    

Total capital assets being
 depreciated, net 32,703,390    10,543,360   (14,024)          43,232,727    

Total capital assets, net 39,384,710$  20,156,915$ (11,654,492)$ 47,887,133$  
 

 
Note 5. Retirement Plan 
 
Plan Description: 
 
Black Hawk College contributes to the State Universities Retirement System of Illinois (SURS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation whereby the State of 
Illinois makes substantially all actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of the participating 
employers.  SURS was established July 21, 1941 to provide retirement annuities and other benefits for staff 
members and employees of the state universities, certain affiliated organizations, and certain other state 
educational and scientific agencies and for survivors, dependents, and other beneficiaries of such 
employees.  SURS is considered a component unit of the State of Illinois’ financial reporting entity and is 
included in the state’s financial reports as a pension trust fund.  SURS is governed by Section 5/15, Chapter 
40, of the Illinois Compiled Statutes.  SURS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information.  That report may be obtained by accessing the website 
at www.SURS.org, or by calling 1-800-275-7877.   
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Funding Policy: 
 
Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary, and substantially all employer 
contributions are made by the State of Illinois on behalf of the individual employers at an actuarially 
determined rate.  The current rate is 35.2% of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of plan 
members and employers are established and may be amended by the Illinois General Assembly.  The 
employer contributions to SURS for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $94,898, 
$111,835, and $107,234, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The employer 
contributions made by the State of Illinois on behalf of the College to SURS were $7,535,508, $5,373,730, 
and $4,293,814 for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.  These amounts are 
included as both revenue and expense of the College. 
 
 
Note 6. Long-Term Liabilities 
 
A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows: 
 
      Due 
  Balance   Balance Within 
  July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 One Year 
 
 Bonds payable $17,740,000 $20,000,000 $(5,025,000) $32,715,000 $5,150,000 
 Unamortized premium  -  874,052 (31,794) 842,258 -  
 Accrued vacation 846,896 227,236 (120,000) 954,132 120,000 
 Early retirement   1,728,557     206,976 (99,667)  1,835,866  81,397 
 
   $20,315,453 $21,308,264 $(5,276,461) $36,347,256 $5,351,397 
 
General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2010:  On March 5, 2010 the College issued 
$20,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds.  The proceeds from this process will be used to fund various 
capital improvements, including a facility expansion for Building 2 on the Quad Cities campus specifically for 
the purpose of expanding sustainable technologies programming, a facility expansion for Building 1 on the 
Quad Cities campus for the creation of a student services center, construction of a new science lab building 
on the East Campus, and technology refresh projects throughout the district.  Principal and interest payments 
on the General Obligation Bonds are to be paid annually on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 
2015.  Interest only payments are due June 1 of each year.  Interest rates range from 2.0% to 3.5% over the life 
of the bonds.  The interest rate includes bond issuance costs of approximately $623,000. 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation 
Bonds as of June 30, 2013, are as follows: 
 
   Principal Interest Total 
 Year ending June 30: 
  2014 $5,150,000 $304,950 $5,454,950  

 2015 5,300,000 160,700 5,460,700  
 2016     2,265,000 33,975 2,298,975 

 
  Total $12,715,000 $499,625 $13,214,625 
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General Obligation Community College Bonds, Series 2013:  On March 12, 2013, the College issued 
$20,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A $10 million taxable and Series 2013B $10 million 
tax exempt, to refund short-term debt certificates of that amount.  The debt certificates were issued and 
received by the College December 18, 2012.  The purpose of issuing these debt certificates was to use the 
proceeds to construct a $15 million health sciences facility at the Quad Cities Campus as well as utilize the 
remaining $5 million to expand and renovate facilities at the East Campus and Community Education Center 
in Kewanee, Illinois.  Principal and interest payments on the General Obligation Bonds are to be paid 
annually on December 1 with the final payment on December 1, 2032.  Interest only payments are due June 
1 of each year beginning June 1, 2013.  Interest rates range from 3.00% to 4.75% over the life of the bonds. 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for the General Obligation 
Bonds as of June 30, 2013, are as follows: 
 
   Principal Interest Total 
 Year ending June 30: 
  2014       $               - $890,191 $890,191   
  2015 - 729,996 729,996   
  2016 - 729,996 729,996  

 2017 835,000 709,643 1,544,643  
 2018     875,000 668,509 1,543,509 

  2019-2023 5,025,000 2,663,769 7,688,769   
  2024-2028 6,135,000 1,559,985 7,694,985  
  2029-2033     7,130,000 547,350 7,677,350 
   
  Total $20,000,000 $8,499,439 $28,499,439 
 
 
The College is subject to a debt limitation of 2.875% of its assessed valuation of $3,556,752,463. As of June 30, 
2013 the College had $69,541,633 of remaining legal debt margin. 
 
Operating Leases:  The College leases space at the Illinois Employment & Training Center for $12,589 per 
month through February 2014, $12,904 per month from March 2014 through February 2015, $13,229 per 
month from March 2015 through February 2016, and $13,554 per month from March 2016 through February 
2017.  Lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $146,872. 
 
The annual requirements for operating leases as of June 30, 2013, are as follows: 
 
 Year ending June 30: 
  2014 $152,327  
  2015 156,146 
  2016 160,048 
  2017 108,433 
 
 Total operating leases $576,954 
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Note 7. Early Retirement and Voluntary Separation Plans 
 
The College has offered a number of voluntary separation and early retirement incentive plans (plans) 
covering individuals of specified employee groups who met stated age and service requirement, therefore 
the College is subject to the requirements set forth is GASB Statement Number 47.  The plans generally 
provided benefits at the time of employee separation based upon combinations of employee age, years of 
continuous service, and salary.  In addition, the plans provide health, vision, and dental insurance; certain of 
the plans also offer life insurance benefits.  The length of coverage varies from five years following the date 
of separation, up to the life of the separated participant.  Some plans require retiree co-payment.  Currently 
44 participants are covered under the various voluntary separation and early retirement plans.  Costs related 
to these plans are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The liability was determined by factoring in the present 
value of projected future unit costs.  The assumptions used in calculating the liability were a discount rate of 
4.25%, compounded annually, a return on assets of 4.25%, compounded annually, and a decreasing health 
care trend rate of 6.5% to 4.0%.  Mortality rates were obtained from the UP-1994 table with generational 
projection scale AA.  It was assumed that 75% of retirees were married at retirement and that male spouses 
are three years older than female spouses.  The recorded liability for these plans is $1,835,866 as of June 
30, 2013. 
 
Note 8. Risk Management and Insurance 
 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort, theft, damage to or the destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. Those risks are covered by the purchase 
of commercial insurance.  Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
The College self insures for employee medical, dental, and vision coverage through a Voluntary Employees’ 
Beneficiary Association (VEBA).  Self insurance is in effect up to an aggregate stop/loss of $6,027,455 with a 
$125,000 per covered person stop/loss amount.  Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained 
for losses in excess of the aggregate stop/loss amount.  One participant was lasered from this excess 
coverage in FY2013.  All claim handling procedures are performed by an independent claims administrator. 
 
The College establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future 
claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred 
but not reported.  At June 30, 2013, the amount of these liabilities was $1,154,284.  The following represents 
changes in those liabilities for the College during the past two years: 
 
 

 Beginning of Fiscal 
Year Liability 

Current Year Claims and 
Changes in Estimates 

Claim 
Payments 

Balance at 
Fiscal Year-End 

FY2012 $443,446 $5,849,427 $5,335,901 $  956,972 
FY2013 $956,972 $6,343,709 $6,146,397 $1,154,284 

 
 
Note 9. Commitments 
 
The College has received a number of federal and state grants for specific purposes which are subject to 
review and audit by grantor agencies.  Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement to granting 
agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants.  Based upon prior experience, the 
College management believes that such disallowances, if any, will not be material. 
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Note 10. New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements is 
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  The pronouncement improves financial reporting by 
addressing issues related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public-private or 
public-public partnership.  Management has determined there is no material effect on the financial 
statements with regard to the adoption of this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 34 is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  The pronouncement modifies 
certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity.  See Note 1 to the 
financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  
The pronouncement incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting guidance that is included in the pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which 
does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Management has determined there is no 
material effect on the financial statements with regard to the adoption of this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  The pronouncement 
provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.  
See the Statement of Net Position. 
 
GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions—
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53 is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.  The 
pronouncement clarifies whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a 
swap counterparty or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider.  Management has determined there is 
no material effect on the financial statements with regard to the adoption of this standard. 
 
GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities is effective for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2014.  The pronouncement reclassifies, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as 
outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities.  See the Statement of Net Position.  Additionally, bond issuance costs are now expensed instead 
of being amortized over the life of the bonds. 
 
Note 11. Pending Accounting Pronouncements 
 
GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and 
No. 62 is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. The pronouncement resolves conflicting guidance 
that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 

Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
 
Note 11. Pending Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 
 
GASB Statement No. 67, Accounting and Reporting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 25 is effective for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. This Statement replaces 
the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension 
plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) 
that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 25 and 50 remain applicable to pension plans 
that are not administered through trusts covered by the scope of this Statement and to defined contribution 
plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27 is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  This Statement replaces the 
requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 related to pension plans that are administered through trusts 
or equivalent arrangements.  The requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 remain applicable for 
pensions that are administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations is effective 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting 
standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations. As used in this 
Statement, the term government combinations includes a variety of transactions referred to as mergers, 
acquisitions, and transfers of operations. 
 
GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees is 
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. This Statement specifies the information required to be 
disclosed by governments that extend nonexchange financial guarantees. In addition, this Statement 
requires new information to be disclosed by governments that receive nonexchange financial guarantees.  
 
Management has not completed its assessment of these pending standards as to the effect, if any, they may 
have on the financial statements.   
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This section of the College’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed statistical information 
as a context for understanding information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information in relation to the overall financial health of the institution. 
 
Contents 
 
Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the College’s financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the College’s most significant local 
revenue sources, tuition and fees, state funding, and property taxes. 
 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the College’s current 
levels of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

 
Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the College’s financial activities take place. 

 
Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the College’s financial report relates to the services the College provides and the activities 
it performs. 

 
Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year.   
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Equalized Assessed Valuations and Tax Collections

Tax Levy Year
2012 2011 2010

Equalized assessed valuations:
  Bureau County 20,972,410$                20,093,388$                20,084,506$                
  Henderson County 2,153,854                    2,123,177                    2,108,005                    
  Henry County 771,178,621                756,965,531                744,715,274                
  Knox County 11,895,820                  11,219,776                  10,660,206                  
  Marshall County 101,819                       110,849                       109,845                       
  Mercer County 227,172,035                222,354,896                222,998,604                
  Rock Island County 2,377,980,495             2,397,690,456             2,376,747,388             
  Stark County 89,397,772                  85,568,081                  83,538,657                  
  Whiteside County 55,899,637                  54,718,409                  52,039,981                  

3,556,752,463$           3,550,844,563$           3,513,002,466$           

Tax rates (per $100 of assessed valuation):
  Education Fund 0.1200                         0.1200                         0.1196                         
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 0.0700                         0.0700                         0.0698                         
  Bond and Interest Fund 0.1794                         0.1538                         0.1554                         
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 0.0514                         0.0782                         0.0736                         
  Audit Fund 0.0012                         0.0028                         0.0026                         
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 0.0500                         0.0500                         0.0500                         
  Equity 0.0683                         0.0621                         0.0614                         

0.5403                         0.5369                         0.5324                         

Tax extensions:
  Education Fund 5,871,416$                  5,672,261$                  5,582,020$                  
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 3,315,676                    3,279,418                    3,228,590                    
  Bond and Interest Fund 6,380,814                    5,461,199                    5,459,206                    
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 1,828,171                    2,776,760                    2,585,570                    
  Audit Fund 42,681                         99,424                         91,338                         
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 1,778,376                    1,775,422                    1,756,501                    

19,217,134$                19,064,484$                18,703,225$                

  Education Fund 1,959,807$                  5,663,727$                  5,572,410$                  
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 1,106,733                    3,274,485                    3,223,031                    
  Bond and Interest Fund 2,106,161                    5,452,984                    5,449,807                    
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 602,395                       2,772,583                    2,581,118                    
  Audit Fund 11,878                         99,274                         91,181                         
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 591,957                       1,772,750                    1,753,477                    

6,378,931$                  19,035,803$                18,671,024$                

Taxes receivable:
  Tax receivable 12,838,203$                -$                             -$                             
  Written off (80,811)                        (28,681)                        (32,202)                        
  Allowance for uncollectible taxes (19,217)                        -                               -                               

12,738,175$                (28,681)$                      (32,202)$                      

Taxes receivable by fund:
  Education Fund 3,844,453$                  -$                             -$                             
  Operations and Maintenance Fund 2,197,559 -                               -                               
  Bond and Interest Fund 4,268,273 -                               -                               
  Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 1,212,892 -                               -                               
  Audit Fund 30,359 -                               -                               
  Operations and Maintenance, restricted 1,184,639 -                               -                               

12,738,175$                -$                             -$                             

Percentage of extensions collected 33.19% 99.85% 99.83%

Less tax collections (cumulative through June 30, 2013):
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Illinois Community College District #503

        

Legal Debt Margin

Assessed valuation,  2012 levy 3,556,752,463$     

 Debt limit, 2.875% of assessed valuation 102,256,633$        
 Bonded indebtedness (32,715,000)          
         Legal debt margin 69,541,633$          

Black Hawk College

Schedule of Legal Debt Margin
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Illinois Community College District #503

  Expenditures from the Following Funds

 1   Education Fund 31,457,789$      
 2   Operations and Maintenance Fund 4,063,062          
 3   Operations and Maintenance Fund - restricted -                     
 4   Bond and Interest Fund 5,661,021          
 5   Public Building Commission Rental Fund -                     
 6   Restricted Purposes Fund 13,783,186        
 7   Audit Fund 82,262               
 8   Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund 2,458,312          
 9   Auxiliary Enterprises Fund (Subsidy Only) -                     

10  Total noncapital expenditures 57,505,632$     

11   Depreciation on capital outlay expenditures (equipment, buildings and fixed
       equipment paid) from sources other than state and federal funds 1,490,465         

12   Total costs included (line 10 plus line 11) 58,996,097       

135,791.20        

14   Per capita cost (line 12 divided by line 13) 434.46              

       expenditures, except ICCB grants 11,457,175        

       divided by line 13) 84.37                

17   District's average ICCB grant rate (excluding equalization grants) for fiscal
28.25                

18   District's student tuition and fee rate per semester credit hour for fiscal year
115.00              

19   Chargeback reimbursement per semester credit hour (line 14 less lines 16,               
       17 and 18) 206.84$            

Approved:                                                            Date:

Approved:                                                            Date:

September 25, 2013

September 25, 2013

16   Fiscal year 2013 state and federal grants per semester credit hour (line 15

       year 2014

       2014

Black Hawk College

Certification of Chargeback Reimbursement for Fiscal Year 2014

All Fiscal Year 2013 Noncapital Audited Operating

13   Total certified semester credit hours for FY 2013

15   All fiscal year 2013 state and federal operating grants for noncapital
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ICCB Uniform Financial Statements 
 
 
 
 
 
The Uniform Financial Statements are required by the Illinois Community College Board for the purpose of 
providing consistent audited data for every community college district.  Regardless of the basis of accounting 
used for a College’s balance sheet and statement of revenues and expenditures, the Uniform Financial 
Statements are completed using the modified accrual basis of accounting prescribed by the NCGA 
Statement No. 1 and related interpretations. 
 
The Uniform Financial Statements include the following: 
 
 No. 1 – All Funds Summary 
 No. 2 – Summary of Fixed Assets and Debt 
 No. 3 – Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures 
 No. 4 – Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures 
 No. 5 – Expenditures by Activity – Current Funds 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 1 - All Funds Summary

  

Operation and Bond &
Education Maintenance Interest

Fund Fund Fund

Fund balance, beginning 9,382,902$     1,129,419$      2,721,699$     
Revenues:
  Local tax revenue 5,710,033       3,286,292        5,912,910       
  All Other Local Revenue 1,221,826       134,618           -                      
  ICCB grants 6,922,554       626,875           -                      
  All other state revenue 3,867              -                       -                      
  Federal revenue 59,381            -                       -                      
  Student tuition and fees 16,767,777     84,140             -                      
  All other revenue 1,044,218       170,824           135                 

Total revenues 31,729,656     4,302,749        5,913,045       

Expenditures:
  Instruction 13,630,315     -                       -                      
  Academic support 4,007,456       -                       -                      
  Student services 2,726,649       -                       -                      
  Public service 778,885          -                       -                      
  Auxiliary services -                      -                       -                      
  Operations and maintenance -                      4,063,062        -                      
  Institutional support 5,468,933       -                       5,661,021       
  Scholarships, student grants and waivers 4,845,551       -                       -                      

Total expenditures 31,457,789     4,063,062        5,661,021       

Net transfers (271,867)         (239,687)          -                      
9,382,902$     1,129,419$      2,973,723$     

Year ended June 30, 2013

Fund balance, end of year
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Liability,
Protection,

Operations and Auxiliary Restricted Working and
Maintenance - Enterprises Purpose Cash Audit Settlement

Restricted Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

19,043,923$      702,675$        94,284$          12,690,355$    211,908$        2,521,853$     48,499,018$   

1,774,561          -                      -                      -                       70,575            2,288,704       19,043,075     
20,874,052        -                      -                      -                       -                      -                      22,230,496     

-                         -                      592,150          -                       -                      -                      8,141,579       
-                         -                      1,417,485       -                       -                      -                      1,421,352       
-                         -                      10,039,690     -                       -                      -                      10,099,071     
-                         355,431          904,170          -                       -                      -                      18,111,518     

462,561             3,234,063       1,040,671       352,468           1                     49,895            6,354,836       
23,111,174        3,589,494       13,994,166     352,468           70,576            2,338,599       85,401,927     

2,215,653          -                      617,391          -                       -                      -                      16,463,359     
6,889                 -                      1,272,563       -                       -                      -                      5,286,908       

16,955               -                      755,244          -                       -                      -                      3,498,848       
-                         -                      829,526          -                       -                      -                      1,608,411       
-                         3,580,825       99,919            -                       -                      -                      3,680,744       

8,006,118          -                      16,682            -                       -                      943,736          13,029,598     
2,468,070 -                      179,896          -                       82,262            1,514,576       15,374,758     

-                         -                      10,011,965     -                       -                      -                      14,857,516     
12,713,685        3,580,825       13,783,186     -                       82,262            2,458,312       73,800,142     

321,449             -                      190,105          -                       -                      -                      -                      
29,762,861$      711,344$        495,369$        13,042,823$    200,222$        2,402,140$     60,100,803$   
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 2 - Summary of Capital Assets and Debt

        

Capital Capital
Asset/Debt Asset/Debt
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013

Capital Assets:
  Land 5,857,925$         1,624,738$         (2,640)$               7,480,023$         
  Building and improvements 42,670,482         9,478,168           -                      52,148,650         
  Equipment 6,504,620           1,041,839           (42,764)               7,503,695           
  Other 5,920,458           9,613,555           (11,637,828)        3,896,185           

60,953,485         21,758,300         (11,683,232)        71,028,553         
Accumulated depreciation (21,568,775)        (1,601,385)          28,740                (23,141,420)        

Total capital assets 39,384,710$       20,156,915$       (11,654,492)$      47,887,133$       

Capital Debt:
  Bonds payable 17,740,000$       20,000,000$       (5,025,000)$        32,715,000$       

Total capital debt 17,740,000$       20,000,000$       (5,025,000)$        32,715,000$       

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 3 - Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures

        
Operations and Total

Education Maintenance Operating
Fund Fund Funds

Operating revenue by source:
  Local government:
    Local taxes  5,710,033$        3,286,292$        8,996,325$        
    Corporate personal property replacement tax 1,211,566          134,618             1,346,184          
    Chargeback revenue  10,260               -                        10,260               

6,931,859          3,420,910          10,352,769        

  State government:
    ICCB credit hour grants 3,291,093          626,875             3,917,968          
    ICCB equalization grants 3,348,294          -                        3,348,294          
    ICCB - Career and Technical Education 283,167             -                        283,167             
    Other state revenue 3,867                 -                        3,867                 

6,926,421          626,875             7,553,296          

  Federal government:
    Department of Education 55,143 -                        55,143               
    Other 4,238                 -                        4,238                 

59,381               -                        59,381               

  Student tuition and fees:
    Tuition 15,514,733        -                        15,514,733        
    Fees 1,253,044          84,140               1,337,184          

16,767,777        84,140               16,851,917        

  Other sources:
    Sales and service fees 681,194             10,622               691,816             
    Facilities revenue 35,111               140,765             175,876             
    Investment revenue 201,725             60                      201,785             
    Other 126,188 19,377               145,565             

1,044,218          170,824             1,215,042          

Total revenues 31,729,656        4,302,749          36,032,405        

Less nonoperating item,
  tuition chargeback revenue (10,260)             -                        (10,260)             

Adjusted revenues 31,719,396$      4,302,749$        36,022,145$      

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 3 - Operating Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

Operations and Total
Education Maintenance Operating

Fund Fund Funds
Operating expenditures by program:
  Instruction 13,630,315$      -$                      13,630,315$      
  Academic support 4,007,456          -                        4,007,456          
  Student services 2,726,649          -                        2,726,649          
  Public service 778,885             -                        778,885             
  Operations and maintenance -                        4,063,062          4,063,062          
  Institutional support 5,468,933          -                        5,468,933          
  Scholarships, student grants and waivers 4,845,551          -                        4,845,551          

Total expenditures 31,457,789        4,063,062          35,520,851        

Less nonoperating item,
  tuition chargeback (10,260)             -                        (10,260)             
Transfers, net 271,867             239,687             511,554             

Adjusted expenditures 31,719,396$      4,302,749$        36,022,145$      

By object:
  Salaries 19,705,513$      1,637,438$        21,342,951$      
  Employee benefits 4,082,466          516,652             4,599,118          
  Contractual services 954,359             470,732             1,425,091          
  General materials and supplies 1,486,461          258,233             1,744,694          
  Conference and meeting expenses 217,957             3,844                 221,801             
  Fixed charges 17,232               166,396             183,628             
  Utilities 2,723                 994,479             997,202             
  Capital outlay 79,235               13,515               92,750               
  Other 4,911,843          1,773                 4,913,616          

Total expenditures 31,457,789        4,063,062          35,520,851        

Less nonoperating item,
  tuition chargeback (10,260)             -                        (10,260)             
Transfers, net 271,867             239,687             511,554             

Adjusted expenditures 31,719,396$      4,302,749$        36,022,145$      

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 4 - Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures

        
Revenues by source:
  Local government -$                           

  State government:
    ICCB:

Adult Education and Family Literacy 491,706                 
Early School Leaver 74,451
State Program Improvement 22,993                   
CTE Innovation 3,000                     

    Illinois State Board of Education: 
Truancy and Alternative Education 173,166                 
Growing Agricultural Science Teachers 12,615                   

    Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity:
Digital Divide 37,310                   
Procurement Technical Assistance Center 39,000                   
Small Business Development Center/ITC 77,071                   
TIES 33,364                   

    Illinois Department of Health & Human Services
Department of Vocational Rehab 40,352                   

    Illinois Student Assistance Center
Monetary Assistance Program 850,395                 

    Secretary of State, LIFE 154,212                 
Total state government 2,009,635              

Federal government:
  Department of Education
    Student Aid Programs:

Federal Work Study (FWS) 149,800                 
Pell Grant 8,194,510              
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG) 138,939                 
Strengthening Institutions - Title III 234,895
Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Program 307,515
Adult Education & Family Literacy Leadership - ICAPS 10,000
Career & Technical Education - ICAPS 10,000
Local Programs of Study Implementation 10,000
Special Student Services 354,943                 
Adult Education and Family Literacy, Federal Basic Program 192,309
Adult Education English Language/Civics 37,318

  Department of Labor
TEAM 75,390                   
ESL for Seaford Employees 27,337                   

  Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee Social Services 30,030                   

  Other Sources:
  Department of Defense 35,000                   
  Small Business Administration 73,794                   
  Veteran's Administration 157,910

10,039,690            

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 4 - Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues and Expenditures (Continued)

        

Revenues by source (Continued):

Other sources: .
  Gifts from donors for scholarships 449,312                 
  Student Fees 904,170
  Student clubs and internal restricted funds 591,359                 

Total other 1,944,841              
Total Restricted Purposes Fund Revenues 13,994,166$          

Expenditures by program:
  Instruction 617,391$               
  Academic support 1,272,563              
  Student services 755,244                 
  Public service/continuing education 829,526                 
  Auxiliary services 99,919                   
  Operations and maintenance 16,682                   
  Institutional support 179,896                 
  Scholarships, student grants and waivers 10,011,965            

Total expenditures by program 13,783,186$          

Expenditures by object:
  Salaries 1,672,824$            
  Employee benefits 465,446                 
  Contractual services 784,310                 
  General materials and supplies 587,431                 
  Conference and meeting expenses 106,182                 
  Fixed charges 20,154                   
  Utilities 103,275                 
  Capital outlay 35,839                   
  Other 10,007,725            
 Total expenditures by object 13,783,186$          

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Uniform Financial Statement No. 5 - Expenditures by Activity - Current Funds

Instruction 14,247,706$          

Academic support:
  Library center 599,037                 
  Instructional materials center 245,050                 
  Educational materials center 6,191                     
  Academic computing support 1,803,804              
  Academic administration and planning 2,436,517              
  Other 189,420                 

Total academic support 5,280,019              

Student services:
  Admissions and records 663,043                 
  Counseling and career guidance 1,488,308              
  Financial aid administration 474,566                 
  Social and cultural development 4,832                     
  Other 851,144                 

Total student services 3,481,893              

Public service/continuing education:
  Community education 282,182                 
  Customized training (instructional) 490,517                 
  Community services 362,560                 
  Other 473,152                 

Total public service/continuing education 1,608,411              

Auxiliary services 3,680,744              

Operations and maintenance of plant:
  Maintenance 887,980                 
  Custodial services 1,028,574              
  Grounds 439,790                 
  Campus security 960,888                 
  Utilities 1,168,479              
  Administration 537,769                 

Total operations and maintenance 5,023,480              

Institutional support:
  Executive office 1,021,178              
  Fiscal operations 874,461                 
  Community relations 1,202,793              
  Administrative support services 1,117,515              
  Board of Trustees 39,413                   
  General institution 1,997,987              
  Administrative data processing 310,024                 
  Other 682,296                 

Total institutional support 7,245,667              

Scholarships, student grants and waivers 14,857,516            
Total current funds expenditures 55,425,436$          

Year ended June 30, 2013

88



Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Reconciliation of the Combining Balance Sheet to the Uniform Financial Statements

        

Fund Balances - Uniform Financial Statements 60,100,803$          

Capital assets in the Investment in Plant Fund 47,887,133            
Long-term debt in the General Long Term Debt Fund (32,715,000)           

Fund Balances - All Fund Types 75,272,936$          

Reconciliation of the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances to the Uniform Financial Statements

        

Change in Fund Balances - Uniform Financial Statements 11,601,785$          

Additions to buildings and equipment 10,120,472            
Depreciation and loss of disposal of assets (1,618,049)             

Net Effect 8,502,423              

Payment on long-term debt 5,025,000              
Issuance of long-term debt (20,000,000)           

Net Effect (14,975,000)           

SURS revenue provided by state 7,535,508              
SURS expenditure provided by state (7,535,508)             

Net Effect -                             

Change in Fund Balances - All Fund Types 5,129,208$            

Year ended June 30, 2013

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Illinois Community College District #503

Public 
State Basic Aid Performance Total

Assets
  Cash -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
  Receivable from ICCB 16,701              8,691                15,584              40,976                
  Due from other funds -                    -                    -                    -                      

Total assets 16,701$            8,691$              15,584$            40,976$              

Liabilities
  Accounts payable 264$                 -$                  -$                  264$                   
  Accrued salaries 7,155                2,482                962                   10,599                
  Due to other funds 9,282                6,209                14,622              30,113                

Total liabilities 16,701$            8,691$              15,584$            40,976$              

Fund balance
  Reserved for encumbrances -                    -                    -                    -                      

Total fund balance -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Public 
State Basic Aid Performance Total

Revenues, state sources 200,409$          104,282$          187,014$          491,705$            

Expenditures:
  Current year's grant:
    Instruction 144,300            51,213              50                     195,563              
    Social work services -                    -                    -                    -                      
    Guidance services 20,193              17,946              60,047              98,186                
    Assessment and testing -                    16,232              4,424                20,656                
    Transportation -                    -                    -                    -                      
    Literacy services -                    -                    2,369                2,369                  
    Improvement of Instructional Services 3,992                667                   4,827                9,486                  
    General administration 12,710              8,442                7,927                29,079                
    Workforce coordination -                    -                    -                    -                      
    Data and information services 16,893              6,961                106,272            130,126              
    Operation of plant services 2,320                2,821                1,098                6,239                  

Total expenditures 200,409            104,282            187,014            491,705              

Revenues over (under)
expenditures -$                 -$                 -$                  -                    

Fund balance:
-                      

-$                    

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs.

  Beginning, July 1, 2012

  Ending, June 30, 2013

Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program

Black Hawk College

Adult Education and Family Literacy Grant Program
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013

Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Illinois Community College District #503

State Basic Audited Expenditure Amount Actual Expenditure Percentage
Instruction 144,300                                            72.00%
(45% Minimum Required)
General Administration 12,710                                              6.34%
(9% Maximum Allowed)

State Public Assistance Audited Expenditure Amount Actual Expenditure Percentage
Instruction 51,213                                              49.11%
(45% Minimum Required)
General Administration 8,442                                                8.10%
(9% Maximum Allowed)

Black Hawk College

ICCB Compliance Statement for the State Adult Education and Family Literacy Restricted Funds
Expenditure Amounts and Percentages for ICCB Grant Funds Only
Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Illinois Community College District #503

ICCB State Program Improvement

        

Assets
  Receivable 15$                        

Total assets     15$                        

Liabilities
  Due to other funds 15$                        

15$                        

Fund balance, encumbered -                        
Total liabilities and fund balance 15$                        

ICCB State Program Improvement
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 22,993$                 

Expenditures:
    Salaries 1,803                     
    Employee benefits 26                          
    Supplies and materials 21,164                   

Total expenditures 22,993                   

Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$                      

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs

  Beginning, July 1, 2012
  Ending, June 30, 2013

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013
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Illinois Community College District #503

ICCB Career and Technical Education Innovation Grant

        

Assets
  Cash -$                      
  Receivable from ICCB -                        

Total assets     -$                      

Liabilities
  Accrued salaries -$                      
  Deferred revenue -                        

Total liabilities -$                      

Fund balance, encumbered -                        
Total liabilities and fund balance -$                      

ICCB Career and Technical Education Innovation Grant
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 3,000$                   

Expenditures:
    Salaries 870                        
    Benefits 67                          
    Contractural Services 2,063                     
    Materials and supplies -                        
    Travel and conferences -                        

             Total expenditures 3,000                     

             Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$                      

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs

  Beginning, July 1, 2012
  Ending, June 30, 2013

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013
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Illinois Community College District #503

Early School Leaver Program

        

Assets
  Cash 1,929$                   
  Receivable -                        

Total assets 1,929$                   

Liabilities
  Accounts payable 1,929$                   
  Accrued salaries -                        

Total liabilities 1,929$                   

Fund balance, encumbered -                        
Total liabilities and fund balance 1,929$                   

Early School Leaver Program
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues, state sources 74,451$                 

Expenditures:
  Salaries 52,559                   
  Benefits 18,892                   
  Contractual Services 9                            
  Supplies and Materials 2,116                     
  Travel 875                        
  Student tuition and fees -                        

             Total expenditures 74,451                   

             Revenues over (under) expenditures -                        

Fund balance:
-                        
-$                      

See Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs

  Beginning, July 1, 2012
  Ending, June 30, 2013

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Black Hawk College

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Note to Financial Statements - Grant Programs 
 
 
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
General: 
 
 The accompanying statements include only those transactions resulting from the Adult Education and 

Family Literacy, ICCB State Program Improvement, Career and Technical Education Innovation, and Early 
School Leaver Program.  The transactions for the grants have been accounted for in the Restricted 
Purposes Fund.   

 
Basis of Accounting: 
 
 The statements have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting as defined in the 

Illinois Community College Board’s Fiscal Management Manual.  Expenditures include all accounts 
payable representing liabilities for goods and services actually received as of June 30, 2013.  Funds 
obligated for goods and services prior to June 30, but for which the goods and services are received 
prior to August 31, are recorded as encumbrances.  Unexpended funds are reflected as a reduction to 
fund balance and a liability due to the Illinois Community College Board by October 15, 2013. 

 
Capital Assets: 
 
 Capital asset purchases are recorded as capital outlay expenditures and are capitalized in accordance 

with the College’s capitalization policy and as allowed by grant specific guidelines. 
 
Encumbrances: 
 
 Payments of prior year’s encumbrances for goods and services received prior to August 31, are 

reflected as expenditures during the current fiscal year. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Background Information on State Grant Activity 
 
 
Unrestricted Grants 
 
 Base Operating Grants:  General operating funds provided to colleges upon credit enrollment with a 

small portion of the allocation based upon gross square footage of space at the College. 
 
 Equalization Grants:  Grants provided to institutions with less than the statewide average local tax 

dollars available per full-time equivalent student. 
 
Restricted Grants/Special Initiatives 
 

Career and Technical Education – Program Improvement and Innovation Grants – Grant funding 
recognizes that keeping career and technical programs current and reflective of the highest quality 
practices in the workplace is necessary to prepare students to be successful in their chosen careers 
and to provide employers with the well-trained workforce they require.  The grant funds are dedicated 
to enhancing instruction and academic support activities to strengthen and improve career and 
technical programs and services. 
 
Early School Leaver - Provides funding for high school dropouts between the ages of 16 and 21 who 
want to complete the secondary level of education and participate in work-site learning experiences 
related to career choices.  Only those youth who demonstrate a willingness to meet both goals and 
who are able to benefit from such a program are selected. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Background Information on State Grant Activity 
 
 
 
Statewide Initiatives 
 
 Special Incentive Grants:  A new request to provide flexible funding for unique initiatives needed in the 

community college system.  The grants will be awarded on a Request for Proposal basis and will focus 
on higher education priorities such as accessibility, affordability, productivity, partnerships, quality, and 
responsiveness.  In addition, a significant proportion of the dollars available will focus on improving the 
availability of qualified information technology employees in the State of Illinois. 

 
 Other Grants:  These other grants are additional contractual grants provided for special or specific 

system-related initiatives.  These grants are supported by signed contracts between the College and 
the State of Illinois.  A brief description of each grant should be included in this section.  A description 
of the grants supported by grant agreements may be found in the appendix of the grant agreement 
governing these grants. 

 
Restricted Adult Education Grants/State 
 
 State Basic:  Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to establish special 

classes for the instruction of persons of age 21 and over or persons under the age of 21 and not 
otherwise in attendance in public school, for the purpose of providing adults in the community other 
instruction as may be necessary to increase their qualifications for employment or other means of self-
support and their ability to meet their responsibilities as citizens, including courses of instruction 
regularly accepted for graduation from elementary or high schools and for Americanization and 
General Education Development Review classes.  Included in this grant are funds for support services, 
such as student transportation and childcare facilities or provision. 

 
 Public Assistance:  Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers to pay for any 

fees, books, and materials incurred in the program for students who are identified as recipients of 
public assistance. 

 
 Performance:  Grant awarded to Adult Education and Family Literacy providers based on performance 

outcomes. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for Certain State Grants Summary 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 
None 
 
 

103



 

Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs for Certain State Grants 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 
None 
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Total Semester Credit Hours by Term (In-District and Out of District Reimbursable)
Categories

Notes 1 and 2 Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted

Baccalaureate 5,274.8         -               28,740.6       -               29,101.6       -               63,117.0       -                

Business Occupational 473.0            -               2,377.9         -               2,809.5         -               5,660.4         -                

Technical Occupational 1,672.9         -               7,222.2         -               8,269.9         -               17,165.0       -                

Health Occupational 940.7            -               4,637.1         -               5,435.1         -               11,012.9       -                

Remedial Developmental 834.0            -               5,770.0         -               3,917.0         -               10,521.0       -                

Adult Basic/Secondary Education 3,710.0         52.2             2,797.5         9,705.4        9,515.3         2,534.5        16,022.8       12,292.1       

Total 12,905.4       52.2             51,545.3       9,705.4        59,048.4       2,534.5        123,499.1     12,292.1       

Note 1) Unrestricted credit hours are supported with 50% or more of unrestricted sources of funding and are reimbursable if they meet all eligibility requirements.

Note 2) Restricted credit hours are supported with more than 50% of restricted sources of funding

Note 3) Total of unrestricted and restricted should equal the S-3 record totals.

Attending Out-of-District on Chargeback
Attending In-District or a Cooperative/Contractual Agreement Total

Semester Credit Hours 130,928.3    63.0              130,991.3     

Dual Credit Dual Enrollment

Reimbursable Semester Credit Hours (All terms) 9,287.0         236.0            

District Prior Year Equalized Assessed Valuation

The District Has No Correctional Semester Credit Hours This Year.

Approved:
Chief Executive Officer

Approved:
Chief Financial Officer

3,556,752,463                      

Summer Spring

Schedule of Enrollment Data and Other Bases Upon Which Claims are Filed for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Fall (Note 3) Total
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Black Hawk College
Illinois Community College District #503

Total Unrestricted Total Restricted
Total Unrestricted Credit Hours Total Restricted Credit Hours

Categories Credit Hours Certified to the ICCB Difference Credit Hours Certified to the ICCB Difference

Baccalaureate 63,117.0                      63,117.0                          -               -                      -                               -             

Business Occupational 5,660.4                        5,660.4                            -               -                      -                               -             

Technical Occupational 17,165.0                      17,165.0                          -               -                      -                               -             

Health Occupational 11,012.9                      11,012.9                          -               -                      -                               -             

Remedial Developmental 10,521.0                      10,521.0                          -               -                      -                               -             

Adult Basic/Secondary Ed. 16,022.8                      16,022.8                          -               12,292.1              12,292.1                      -             

Total 123,499.1                    123,499.1                        -               12,292.1              12,292.1                      -             

Reconciliation of In-District/Chargeback and Cooperative/Contractual Agreement Credit Hours
Total Attending as Certified to the ICCB

Total Attending (Unrestricted and Restricted) (Unrestricted and Restricted) Difference

In-District Resident 130,928.3                    130,928.3    -                               

Out-of-District on Chargeback or

Contractual Agreement 63.0                             63.0             -                               

Dual Credit 9,287.0                        9,287.0        -                               

Dual Enrollment 236.0                           236.0           -                               

The District Has No Correctional Semester Credit Hours This Year.

Reconciliation of Total Semester Credit Hours for the Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Student Residency Verification 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF STUDENT RESIDENCY VERIFICATION PROCESS 
 
 

 
Residence is defined in the College catalog as the place where the student lives and which is the student’s 
true home. Residency is determined at the time of application for admission. Students who change their 
residency after applying must verify their residency. Proof of residency is verified by any of the following: 
 

1. An Illinois driver’s license and/or vehicle registration 

2. A voter registration card 

3. Payment of property taxes in the Black Hawk College District #503 

4. Full-time employment in Black Hawk College District #503 

5. Other documents that are not self serving 

 
The residency of the student determines tuition rates assessed.  Tuition rates assessed for students 
considered in-district are lower than tuition rates for those students who are considered out-of-district.   
 
Copies of the proof and certification of residency forms are kept on file and residency compliance is 
periodically reviewed by the Office of Institutional Planning and Effectiveness.  It is the student’s 
responsibility to provide proof of residency and maintain compliance with the residency requirements of the 
College. 
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Illinois Community College District #503

Summary of Assessed Valuations

Equalized 
Assessed

Tax Levy Year Valuation

2012 3,556,752,463$    
2011 3,550,844,563      
2010 3,513,002,466      

Black Hawk College

Most Recent Three Years
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District # 503 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Federal 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grant Federal 
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures 
U.S. Department of Education 
Direct Programs: 

Student Financial Aid - cluster 
Federal PELL Grant Program 84.063  $  8,195,204 
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 84.007        138,939 
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268     3,525,840 
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033        149,800 

Total student financial aid cluster   12,009,783 

Federal Strengthen Institution Program 84.031 P031A090064 234,894
   
TRIO - Student Support Services 84.042A P042A100151-12 66,582
TRIO - Student Support Services 84.042A P042A100151-12      288,361 

Total TRIO cluster   354,943

Total direct programs 
 

$12,599,620 

Passed through Illinois Community College Board: 
Adult Education State Grant Program (Fed Basic) 84.002A 50301         192,309 

Adult Education and Family Literacy Leadership (ICAPS) 84.002A AEL ICAPS 50313 10,000
Adult Education State Grant Program (EL Civics) 84.002A 50301           37,318 

   239,627

   
Vocational Education (Perkins) 84.048 CTE50313         301,769 
Career and Technical Education (ICAPS) 84.048 CTE ICAPS 50313 10,000
Local Programs of Study Implementation 84.048 CTEL 13 POSI 503 10,000
Vocational Education (Perkins Innovation/Strand III) 84.048 CTEL 13 503           5,746 

   327,515
Total pass through programs from 
Illinois Community College Board

 
567,142 

 

Total U.S. Department of Education: $13,166,762 

    

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services    

Passed through Illinois Department of Human Services    
Refugee Social Services Program 93.566  30,029

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:   30,029

    

U.S. Department of Defense 
Passed through Illinois Department of Commerce and 

Economic Opportunity: 
Procurement Technical Assistance Center 12.002 13-601109 35,000 

Total U.S. Department of Defense: 35,000 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District # 503 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Federal 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grant Federal 
Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Identifying Number Expenditures 
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 

VA Rehabilitation 64.116 41,070
Veteran's Educational Assistance 64.120         116,840 

Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 157,910
 
Small Business Administration 
Passed through Illinois Department of Commerce and 

Economic Opportunity: 
Small Business Development Center/ITC 59.037 12-561119           15,489 

Small Business Development Center/ITC 59.037 13-181119            18,825 
34,314

Passed through Illinois Department of Commerce and 
Community Affairs: 

Small Business Development Center/ITC 59.037 12-561119           19,765
Small Business Development Center/ITC 59.037 13-181119           19,715 

          39,480 

Total Small Business Administration: 
 

 73,794 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Passed through Illinois Department of Employment: 

WIA - Training Employee Academic Mastery 17.259 #12Y-BHC TEAM           75,390 
   
Passed through Illinois Department of Commerce and 

Economic Opportunity: 
Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College 

and Career Training (TAACCCT) Grants 17.282 27,337

   
Total U.S. Department of Labor:         102,727

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards:    $13,566,222

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
See Independent Auditors Report 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 
Note 1. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant 
activity of Black Hawk College under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Black Hawk 
College, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash 
flows of Black Hawk College. 
 
Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting 
 
Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-21, Cost Principles for Education 
Institutions, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of 
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are 
presented where available. 
 
Note 3. Sub-recipients 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2013, the College had no sub-recipients of federal funds. 
 
Note 4. Nonmonetary Assistance 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2013, the College received no federal funds in the form of nonmonetary 
assistance. 
 
Note 5. Other Federal Award Information 
 
Black Hawk College has no loans or loan guarantees outstanding at June 30, 2013. 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 
 
 I. Summary of Independent Auditor’s Results 
 
 Financial Statements: 
 
 Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified 
 
 Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
 * Material weakness identified?  Yes      X No 
 * Significant deficiency identified that is not 
    considered to be a material weakness       Yes      X No 
 
 Noncompliance material to financial statements 
   noted?  Yes      X No 
 
 Federal Awards: 
 
 Internal control over major programs: 
 

 Material weakness identified?  Yes      X No 
 Significant deficiency identified that is 

    not considered to be a material weakness  Yes      X None reported 
 
 Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 
 

 Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
    to be reported in accordance with Section 
    510(a) of Circular A-133?       Yes      X No 
 
 Identification of Major Programs: 
 
 CFDA 
 Number Name of Federal Program 
 

84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 
84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans 
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program 
84.063 Federal PELL Grant Program 
84.042A TRIO – Student Support Services 
84.048 Vocational Education (Perkins) 

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs $300,000 

 
 Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?      X Yes  No 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ending June 30, 2013 
 
 II. Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statement Audit as Required to be Reported in 

Accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards 
 

A. Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control 
 

 The audit disclosed no matters involving internal control over financial reporting and its 
operations that are considered to be material weaknesses. 

 
B. Compliance Findings 

 
  The audit disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are material to the basic financial 

statements of Black Hawk College as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
 
 III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 
 

A. Significant Deficiencies in Administering Federal Awards 
 
 None 
 
B. Compliance Findings 
 

  None 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Corrective Action Plan 
Year Ending June 30, 2013 
 
 
 N/A 
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
June 30, 2013 
 
    
    Corrective Action or 
  Comment Status Other Explanation 
 
 None 
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Illinois Community College District #503

Combining Balance Sheet

Operations & Auxiliary Restricted
Education Maintenance Enterprises Purposes Audit

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund
  Cash and cash equivalents 6,836,981$       552,920$         -$                532,710$         192,349$     
  Investments -                       -                       -                  -                      -                  
  Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
     Property Taxes 3,844,453         2,197,559        -                  -                      30,359         
     Federal government claims -                       -                       -                  773,999          -                  
     State government claims 2,465,517         248,961           -                  245,812          -                  
     Student tuition and fees 932,517            -                       -                  -                      -                  
     Other 68,284              -                       317,604      7,476              -                  
  Due from other funds 649,725            13,890             10,660        136,271          -                  
  Inventory -                       -                       498,536      -                      -                  
  Prepaid expenses 158,263            12,589             8,288          33,016            -                  
  Capital assets:
    Land -                       -                       -                  -                      -                  
    Construction and Equipment in process -                       -                       -                  -                      -                  
    Building, improvements and equipment

-                       -                       -                  -                      -                  
Total assets 14,955,740$     3,025,919$      835,088$    1,729,284$      222,708$     

Liabilities and Fund Balance
  Accounts payable 524,214$          110,539$         25,762$      209,467$         -$                
  Accrued expenses
      Payroll 926,541            -                       -                  28,517            -                  
      Early retirement 81,397              -                       -                  -                      -                  
      Accrued vacation 723,587            97,015             32,104        49,029            -                  
      Other 8,636                1                      -                  14,136            -                  
  Due to other funds 135,823            14,606             63,794        664,444          1,145           
  Deferred revenue
      Property taxes 2,935,708         1,657,838        -                  -                      21,341         
      Student tuition and fees 227,014            -                       2,084          6,771              -                  
      Other -                       2,050               -                  259,762          -                  
  Other liabilities 9,918                14,451             -                  1,789              -                  
  Bonds payable -                       -                       -                  -                      -                  
  Leases payable -                       -                       -                  -                      -                  

Total liabilities  5,572,838         1,896,500        123,744      1,233,915        22,486         

Fund balance
  Restricted -                       -                       -                  495,369          200,222       
  Unrestricted 9,382,902         1,129,419        711,344      -                      -                  

Total fund balance 9,382,902         1,129,419        711,344      495,369          200,222       
Total liabilities and 
fund balance 14,955,740$     3,025,919$      835,088$    1,729,284$      222,708$     

See Note to Supplemental Information.

Black Hawk College

Assets

       net of $23,141,420 depreciation

June 30, 2013
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Liability,
Protection, and Working Bond & Operations & Investment General

Settlement Cash Interest Maintenance in Plant Long Term
Fund Fund Fund Restricted Fund Debt Fund Total
2,158,456$        12,980,657$     2,147,762$      30,129,717$       -$                      -$                       55,531,552$      

-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         -                         

1,212,892          -                       4,268,273        1,184,639          -                        -                         12,738,175        
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         773,999             
-                         -                       -                      1,000,000          -                        -                         3,960,290          
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         932,517             

3,335                 -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         396,699             
13,614               62,166              5,041              144,240             -                        -                         1,035,607          

-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         498,536             
14,680               -                       -                      8,319                 -                        -                         235,155             

-                         -                       -                      -                         7,480,023          -                         7,480,023          
-                         -                       -                      -                         3,896,185          -                         3,896,185          

-                         -                       -                      -                         36,510,925        -                         36,510,925        
3,402,977$        13,042,823$     6,421,076$      32,466,915$       47,887,133$      -$                       123,989,663$    

19,176$             -$                     -$                    1,591,590$         -$                      -$                       2,480,748$        

-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         955,058             
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         81,397               

52,397               -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         954,132             
-                         -                       245,962          93,642               -                        -                         362,377             

15,178               -                       10,984            129,633             -                        -                         1,035,607          

914,086             -                       3,190,407        889,189             -                        -                         9,608,569          
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         235,869             
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         261,812             
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         26,158               
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        32,715,000         32,715,000        
-                         -                       -                      -                         -                        -                         -                         

1,000,837          -                       3,447,353        2,704,054          -                        32,715,000         48,716,727        

2,402,140          10,194,190       2,973,723        27,508,249         -                        -                         43,773,893        
-                         2,848,633         -                      2,254,612          47,887,133        (32,715,000)       31,499,043        

2,402,140          13,042,823       2,973,723        29,762,861         47,887,133        (32,715,000)       75,272,936        

3,402,977$        13,042,823$     6,421,076$      32,466,915$       47,887,133$      -$                       123,989,663$    
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Illinois Community College District #503

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Operations
and

Education Maintenance Auxiliary Restricted Audit

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund
Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes 5,710,033$        3,286,292$      -$                  -$                     70,575$       
      Personal Property Replacement Tax 1,211,566 134,618 -                    -                        -                   
      Other 10,260                -                       -                    -                        -                   

Total local government sources 6,931,859          3,420,910        -                    -                        70,575         
  State governmental sources 6,926,421          626,875           -                    2,009,635        -                   
  Federal governmental sources 59,381                -                       -                    10,039,690      -                   
  Student tuition and fees 16,767,777        84,140 355,431        904,170           -                   
  Sales, services and rental of facilities and equipment 716,305             151,387           3,148,986     219,234 -                   
  Investment earnings 201,725             60                    -                    -                        1                  
  Other sources 126,188             19,377             85,077          821,437           -                   
  Additions to buildings and equipment, current funds -                          -                       -                    -                        -                   
  Payment of long-term debt -                          -                       -                    -                        -                   
  SURS contribution provided by state -                          -                       -                    7,535,508        -                   

Total revenues 31,729,656        4,302,749        3,589,494     21,529,674      70,576         

Expenditures:
    Instruction 13,630,315        -                       -                    617,391           -                   
    Academic support 4,007,456          -                       -                    1,272,563        -                   
    Student services 2,726,649          -                       -                    755,244           -                   
    Public services 778,885             -                       -                    829,526           -                   
    Institutional support 5,468,933          -                       -                    179,896           82,262         
    Auxiliary services -                          -                       3,580,825 99,919             -                   
    Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 4,845,551          -                       -                    10,011,965      -                   
    SURS contribution provided by state -                          -                       -                    7,535,508        -                   
    Depreciation -                          -                       -                    -                        -                   
    Loss on disposal of assets -                          -                       -                    -                        -                   
    Operation of physical facilities -                          4,063,062        -                    16,682             -                   

Total expenditures 31,457,789        4,063,062        3,580,825     21,318,694      82,262         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 271,867             239,687           8,669            210,980           (11,686)        

Other financing sources (uses):

  Bond proceeds -                          -                       -                    -                        -                   

  Bond premium (discount) -                          -                       -                    -                        -                   

  Operating transfers in -                          -                       -                    190,105           -                   
  Operating transfers out (271,867)            (239,687)          -                    -                        -                   

Total other financing sources (uses) (271,867)            (239,687)          -                    190,105           -                   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing resources over

expenditures and other financing uses -                          -                       8,669            401,085           (11,686)        

Fund balance
  Beginning 9,382,902          1,129,419        702,675        94,284             211,908       
  Ending 9,382,902$        1,129,419$      711,344$      495,369$         200,222$     

See Note to Supplemental Information.

Black Hawk College

Year ended June 30, 2013
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Liability,
Protection,

and Working Bond & Operations & Investment General
Settlement Cash Interest Maintenance in Plant Long Term

Fund Fund Fund Restricted Fund Debt Fund Total

2,288,704$       -$                       5,912,910$        1,774,561$       -$                       -$                       19,043,075$       
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         1,346,184           
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         10,260                

2,288,704         -                         5,912,910          1,774,561         -                         -                         20,399,519         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         9,562,931           
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         10,099,071         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         18,111,518         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         4,235,912           

49,895               352,468            135 243,798            -                         -                         848,082              
-                         -                         -                         218,763            -                         -                         1,270,842           
-                         -                         -                         -                         10,120,472       -                         10,120,472         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         5,025,000          5,025,000           
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         7,535,508           

2,338,599         352,468            5,913,045          2,237,122         10,120,472       5,025,000          87,208,855         

-                         -                         -                         2,215,653         -                         -                         16,463,359         
-                         -                         -                         6,889                 -                         -                         5,286,908           
-                         -                         -                         16,955               -                         -                         3,498,848           
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         1,608,411           

1,514,576         -                         5,661,021          2,468,070         -                         -                         15,374,758         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         3,680,744           
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         14,857,516         
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         7,535,508           
-                         -                         -                         -                         1,601,385         -                         1,601,385           
-                         -                         -                         -                         16,664               -                         16,664                

943,736            -                         -                         8,006,118         -                         -                         13,029,598         

2,458,312         -                         5,661,021          12,713,685       1,618,049         -                         82,953,699         

(119,713)           352,468            252,024             (10,476,563)      8,502,423         5,025,000          4,255,156           

-                         -                         -                         20,000,000       -                         (20,000,000)       -                          

-                         -                         -                         874,052            -                         874,052              

-                         -                         -                         321,449            -                         -                         511,554              
-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         (511,554)             

-                         -                         -                         21,195,501       -                         (20,000,000)       874,052              

(119,713)           352,468            252,024             10,718,938       8,502,423         (14,975,000)       5,129,208           

2,521,853         12,690,355       2,721,699          19,043,923       39,384,710       (17,740,000)       70,143,728         
2,402,140$       13,042,823$     2,973,723$        29,762,861$     47,887,133$     (32,715,000)$    75,272,936$       
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Illinois Community College District #503

Reconciliation of the Combining Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

Fund Balances - All Fund Types 75,272,936$     

50% of the 2011 tax levy recognized in FY 2012 9,608,569         

Long-term portion of early retirement liability (1,754,469)        

Unamortized bond premium (842,258)           

Net Assets of Statement of Net Position 82,284,778$     

Reconciliation of the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Net Increase in Fund Balances 5,129,208$       

Reduction in student tuition and fees (12,498,178)      
Reduction in financial aid 12,498,178       

Net Effect -                    

Additions to buildings and equipment, current funds 10,120,472       
Expended for capital assets (10,120,472)      

Net Effect -                    

Long-term debt retired 5,025,000         
Additions to general long-term debt fund (5,025,000)        

Net Effect -                    

Unamortized bond premium (842,258)           

Increase in long-term early retirement liability (125,579)           

50% of the 2011 tax levy recognized in FY 2012 9,608,569         
50% of the 2010 tax levy recognized in FY 2011 (9,532,245)        

Net Effect 76,324              

Change in Net Position 4,237,695$       

This schedule is supplemental information and is maintained for management purposes only.

Black Hawk College
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - General Fund by Program

Year ended June 30, 2013

Operations & Operations &
Education Education Actual Maintenance Maintenance Actual

Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget

Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes 5,673,254$       5,710,033$     36,779$           3,280,414$    3,286,292$     5,878$               
      Personal property taxes 1,080,000         1,211,566       131,566           120,000         134,618          14,618               
      Other -                        10,260            10,260             -                     -                      -                         

Total local government sources 6,753,254         6,931,859       178,605           3,400,414      3,420,910       20,496               
  State governmental sources 6,812,644         6,926,421       113,777           627,724         626,875          (849)                   
  Federal governmental sources 38,000              59,381            21,381             -                     -                      -                         
  Student tuition and fees 16,652,688       16,767,777     115,089           85,000           84,140            (860)                   
  Sales, services and rental of facilities 628,260            716,305          88,045             132,640         151,387          18,747               
  Investment earnings 250,000            201,725          (48,275)            -                     60                   60                      
  Other sources 16,600              126,188          109,588           25,300           19,377            (5,923)                
  Contingency 400,000            -                      (400,000)          250,000         -                      (250,000)           

Total revenues 31,551,446       31,729,656     178,210            4,521,078      4,302,749       (218,329)           

Expenditures:
Current
    Instruction 14,374,213       13,630,315     (743,898)          -                     -                      -                         
    Academic support 4,826,418         4,007,456       (818,962)          -                     -                      -                         
    Student services 2,904,252         2,726,649       (177,603)          -                     -                      -                         
    Public services 761,891            778,885          16,994             -                     -                      -                         
    Institutional support 4,950,980         5,468,933       517,953           -                     -                      -                         
    Auxiliary services -                        -                      -                       -                     -                      -                         
    Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 4,015,000         4,845,551       830,551           -                     -                      -                         
    Operation of physical facilities -                        -                      -                       4,299,770      4,063,062       (236,708)           
    Contingency 525,000            -                      (525,000)          265,000         -                      (265,000)           

Total expenditures 32,357,754       31,457,789     (899,965)          4,564,770      4,063,062       (501,708)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (806,308)           271,867          1,078,175        (43,692)          239,687          283,379             

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in -                        -                      -                       -                     -                      -                         
  Operating transfers out -                        (271,867)        (271,867)          -                     (239,687)         (239,687)           

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                        -                      -                       -                     -                      -                         
   Bond premium (discount) -                        -                      -                       -                     -                      -                         

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        (271,867)        (271,867)          -                     (239,687)         (239,687)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing resources over

expenditures and other financing uses (806,308)$         -                      806,308$         (43,692)$        -                      43,692$             

Fund balance

  Beginning 9,382,902$     1,129,419$     

  Ending 9,382,902$     1,129,419$     
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - General Fund by Object

Year ended June 30, 2013

Operations & Operations &
Education Education Actual Maintenance Maintenance Actual

Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget

Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes 5,673,254$       5,710,033$       36,779$             3,280,414$    3,286,292$     5,878$               
      Personal property taxes 1,080,000         1,211,566 131,566             120,000         134,618$        14,618               
      Other -                        10,260 10,260               -                     -                      -                         

Total local government sources 6,753,254         6,931,859         178,605             3,400,414      3,420,910       20,496               
  State governmental sources 6,812,644         6,926,421         113,777             627,724         626,875          (849)                   
  Federal governmental sources 38,000              59,381              21,381               -                     -                      -                         
  Student tuition and fees 16,652,688       16,767,777       115,089             85,000           84,140            (860)                   
  Sales, services and rental of facilities 628,260            716,305            88,045               132,640         151,387          18,747               
  Investment earnings 250,000            201,725            (48,275)             -                     60                   60                      
  Other sources 16,600              126,188            109,588             25,300           19,377            (5,923)                
  Contingency 400,000            -                        (400,000)           250,000         -                      (250,000)           

Total revenues 31,551,446       31,729,656       178,210              4,521,078      4,302,749       (218,329)           

Expenditures:
Current

Salaries 20,594,201       19,705,513       (888,688)           1,717,222      1,637,438       (79,784)             
Benefits 3,833,679         4,082,466         248,787             525,282         516,652          (8,630)                
Contractual Services 1,357,964         954,359            (403,605)           453,574         470,732          17,158               
Supplies & Materials 1,619,195         1,486,461         (132,734)           298,500         258,233          (40,267)             
Fixed Charges 22,900              17,232              (5,668)                160,172         166,396          6,224                 
Utilities 5,500                2,723                (2,777)                1,114,850      994,479          (120,371)           
Capital Outlay -                        79,235              79,235               -                     13,515            13,515               
Other 4,399,315         5,129,800         730,485             30,170           5,617              (24,553)             

    Contingency 525,000            -                        (525,000)           265,000         -                      (265,000)           

Total expenditures 32,357,754       31,457,789       (899,965)           4,564,770      4,063,062       (501,708)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (806,308)           271,867            1,078,175          (43,692)          239,687          283,379             

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in -                        -                        -                         -                     -                      -                         
  Operating transfers out -                        (271,867)           (271,867)           -                     (239,687)         (239,687)           

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                        -                        -                         -                     -                      -                         
   Bond premium (discount) -                        -                        -                         -                     -                      -                         

Total other financing sources (uses) -                        (271,867)           (271,867)           -                     (239,687)         (239,687)           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing resources over

expenditures and other financing uses (806,308)$         -                        806,308$           (43,692)$        -                      43,692$             

Fund balance

  Beginning 9,382,902$       1,129,419$     

  Ending 9,382,902$       1,129,419$     
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Major Special Revenue Funds by Program

Year ended June 30, 2013

 
 

Restricted Restricted  
Purposes Purposes Actual Audit Audit Actual

Funds Funds Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget

Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes -$                       -$                      -$                        94,992$          70,575$          (24,417)$         
      Tuition chargeback -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      
      Other -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      

Total local government sources -                         -                        -                          94,992            70,575            (24,417)           
  State governmental sources 2,413,563          2,009,635         (403,928)            -                      -                      -                      
  Federal governmental sources 15,955,322        10,039,690       (5,915,632)         -                      -                      -                      
  Student tuition and fees 975,000             904,170            (70,830)               -                      -                      -                      
  Sales, services and rental of facilities -                         219,234            219,234              -                      -                      -                      
  Investment earnings -                         -                        -                          -                      1                     1                     
  Other sources 127,945 821,437            693,492 -                      -                      -                      
  Contingency 2,000,000 -                        (2,000,000) -                      -                      -                      

Total revenues 21,471,830        13,994,166       (7,477,664)         94,992            70,576            (24,416)           

Expenditures:
Current
    Instruction 523,268             617,391            94,123                -                      -                      -                      
    Academic support 1,922,450          1,272,563         (649,887)            -                      -                      -                      
    Student services 809,746             755,244            (54,502)               -                      -                      -                      
    Public services 998,121             829,526            (168,595)            -                      -                      -                      
    Institutional support 203,062             179,896            (23,166)               80,000            82,262            2,262              
    Auxiliary services 85,152               99,919              14,767                -                      -                      -                      
    Scholarships, student grants, and waivers 14,912,725        10,011,965       (4,900,760)         -                      -                      -                      
    Operation of physical facilities 17,306               16,682              (624)                    -                      -                      -                      
    Contingency 2,000,000          -                        (2,000,000)         -                      -                      -                      

Total expenditures 21,471,830        13,783,186       (7,688,644)         80,000            82,262            2,262              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures -                         210,980            210,980              14,992            (11,686)           (26,678)           

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in -                         190,105            190,105              -                      -                      -                      
  Operating transfers out -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      
   Bond premium (discount) -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      

Total other financing sources (uses) -                         190,105            190,105              -                      -                      -                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing resources over
expenditures and other financing uses -$                       401,085            401,085$            14,992$          (11,686)           (26,678)$         

Fund balance

  Beginning 94,284$            211,908$        

  Ending 495,369$          200,222$        
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Liability, Liability,
Protection, Protection,

and and Bond & Bond & Operations & Operations &
Settlement Settlement Actual Interest Interest Actual Maintenance, Maintenance, Actual

Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under) Restricted Restricted Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget

2,769,370$       2,288,704$       (480,666)$         5,456,825$        5,912,910$       456,085$        1,800,000$          1,774,561$         (25,439)$           
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        

2,769,370         2,288,704         (480,666)           5,456,825          5,912,910         456,085          1,800,000            1,774,561           (25,439)             
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      580,000               -                          (580,000)           
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                        49,895              49,895              -                         135                   135                 160,000               243,798              83,798              
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           218,763              218,763            
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      1,000,000            -                          (1,000,000)        

2,769,370         2,338,599         (430,771)           5,456,825          5,913,045         456,220          3,540,000            2,237,122           (1,302,878)        

-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      500,000               2,215,653           1,715,653         
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      1,000,000            6,889                  (993,111)           
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      500,000               16,955                (483,045)           
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        

2,157,590         1,514,576         (643,014)           5,456,825 5,661,021 204,196 500,000 2,468,070           1,968,070         
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      300,000               -                          (300,000)           
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        

1,161,780         943,736            (218,044)           -                         -                        -                      14,289,605          8,006,118           (6,283,487)        
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      1,000,000            -                          (1,000,000)        

3,319,370         2,458,312         (861,058)           5,456,825          5,661,021         204,196          18,089,605          12,713,685         (5,375,920)        

(550,000)           (119,713)           430,287            -                         252,024            252,024          (14,549,605)        (10,476,563)        4,073,042         

-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           321,449              321,449            
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      (250,000)             -                          250,000            
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      20,000,000          20,000,000         -                        
-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           874,052              874,052            

-                        -                        -                        -                         -                        -                      19,750,000          21,195,501         1,445,501         

(550,000)$         (119,713)           430,287$          -$                       252,024            252,024$        5,200,395$          10,718,938         5,518,543$       

2,521,853$       2,721,699$       19,043,923$       

2,402,140$       2,973,723$       29,762,861$       
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Major Special Revenue Funds by Object

Year ended June 30, 2013

 
 

Restricted Restricted  
Purposes Purposes Actual Audit Audit Actual

Funds Funds Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget

Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes -$                       -$                      -$                        94,992$          70,575$          (24,417)$         
      Tuition chargeback -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      
      Other -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      

Total local government sources -                         -                        -                          94,992            70,575            (24,417)           
  State governmental sources 2,413,563          2,009,635         (403,928)            -                      -                      -                      
  Federal governmental sources 15,955,322        10,039,690       (5,915,632)         -                      -                      -                      
  Student tuition and fees 975,000             904,170            (70,830)               -                      -                      -                      
  Sales, services and rental of facilities -                         219,234            219,234              -                      -                      -                      
  Investment earnings -                         -                        -                          -                      1                     1                     
  Other sources 127,945 821,437            693,492 -                      -                      -                      
  Contingency 2,000,000 -                        (2,000,000) -                      -                      -                      

Total revenues 21,471,830        13,994,166       (7,477,664)         94,992            70,576            (24,416)           

Expenditures:
Current
    Salaries 1,611,544          1,672,824         61,280                -                      -                      -                      

Benefits 374,899             465,446            90,547                -                      -                      -                      
Contractual Services 1,670,527          784,310            (886,217)            80,000            82,262            2,262              
Supplies & Materials 615,518             587,431            (28,087)               -                      -                      -                      
Conference & Meetings 84,777               106,182            21,405                -                      -                      -                      
Fixed Charges 34,622               20,154              (14,468)               -                      -                      -                      
Utilities 101,707             103,275            1,568                  -                      -                      -                      
Capital Outlay 65,511               35,839              (29,672)               -                      -                      -                      
Other 14,912,725        10,007,725       (4,905,000)         -                      -                      -                      

    Contingency 2,000,000          -                        (2,000,000)         -                      -                      -                      

Total expenditures 21,471,830        13,783,186       (7,688,644)         80,000            82,262            2,262              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures -                         210,980            210,980              14,992            (11,686)           (26,678)           

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in -                         190,105            190,105              -                      -                      -                      
  Operating transfers out -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      
   Bond premium (discount) -                         -                        -                          -                      -                      -                      

Total other financing sources (uses) -                         190,105            190,105              -                      -                      -                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing resources over
expenditures and other financing uses -$                       401,085            401,085$            14,992$          (11,686)           (26,678)$         

Fund balance

  Beginning 94,284$            211,908$        

  Ending 495,369$          200,222$        
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Liability, Liability,
Protection, Protection,

and and Bond & Bond & Operations & Operations &
Settlement Settlement Actual Interest Interest Actual Maintenance, Maintenance, Actual

Fund Fund Over (Under) Fund Fund Over (Under) Restricted Restricted Over (Under)
Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget

2,769,370$         2,288,704$         (480,666)$         5,456,825$        5,912,910$       456,085$        1,800,000$          1,774,561$         (25,439)$           
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        

2,769,370           2,288,704           (480,666)           5,456,825          5,912,910         456,085          1,800,000            1,774,561           (25,439)             
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      580,000               -                          (580,000)           
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
-                          49,895                49,895              -                         135                   135                 160,000               243,798              83,798              
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           218,763              218,763            
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      1,000,000            -                          (1,000,000)        

2,769,370           2,338,599           (430,771)           5,456,825          5,913,045         456,220          3,540,000            2,237,122           (1,302,878)        

839,624              822,760              (16,864)             -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
915,392              897,014              (18,378)             -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        
371,345              236,124              (135,221)           -                         -                        -                      500,000               737,294              237,294            

31,100                84,742                53,642              -                         -                        -                      -                           951,430              951,430            
10,200                4,870                  (5,330)               -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        

450,000              334,600              (115,400)           5,456,825          5,661,021         204,196          -                           175,000              175,000            
11,850                7,275                  (4,575)               -                         -                        -                      -                           -                          -                        

689,859              40,636                (649,223)           -                         -                        -                      16,589,605          10,031,484         (6,558,121)        
-                          30,291                30,291              -                         -                        -                      -                           818,477              818,477            
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      1,000,000            -                          (1,000,000)        

3,319,370           2,458,312           (861,058)           5,456,825          5,661,021         204,196          18,089,605          12,713,685         (5,375,920)        

(550,000)             (119,713)             430,287            -                         252,024            252,024          (14,549,605)        (10,476,563)        4,073,042         

-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           321,449              321,449            
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      (250,000)             -                          250,000            
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      20,000,000          20,000,000         -                        
-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      -                           874,052              874,052            

-                          -                          -                        -                         -                        -                      19,750,000          21,195,501         1,445,501         

(550,000)$           (119,713)             430,287$          -$                       252,024            252,024$        5,200,395$          10,718,938         5,518,543$       

2,521,853$         2,721,699$       19,043,923$       

2,402,140$         2,973,723$       29,762,861$       
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Major Special Revenue Funds by Object (continued)
Year ended June 30, 2013

Working Working

Cash Cash Actual

Fund Fund Over (Under)

Budget Actual Budget

Revenues:

  Local governmental sources

      Property taxes -$                  -$                      -$                      

      Tuition chargeback -                    -                        -                        

      Other -                    -                        -                        

Total local government sources -                    -                        -                        

  State governmental sources -                    -                        -                        

  Federal governmental sources -                    -                        -                        

  Student tuition and fees -                    -                        -                        

  Sales, services and rental of facilities -                    -                        -                        

  Investment earnings 300,000        352,468            52,468               

  Other sources -                    -                        -                        

  Contingency -                    -                        -                        

Total revenues 300,000        352,468            52,468               

Expenditures:

Current

Salaries -                    -                        -                        

Benefits -                    -                        -                        

Contractual Services -                    -                        -                        

Supplies & Materials -                    -                        -                        

Conference & Meeting -                    -                        -                        

Fixed Charges -                    -                        -                        

Utilities -                    -                        -                        

Capital Outlay -                    -                        -                        

Other -                    -                        -                        

    Contingency -                    -                        -                        

Total expenditures -                    -                        -                        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 300,000        352,468            52,468               

Other financing sources (uses):

  Operating transfers in -                    -                        -                        

  Operating transfers out (600,000)       -                        600,000             

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                    -                        -                        

   Bond premium (discount) -                    -                        -                        

Total other financing sources (uses) (600,000)       -                        600,000             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing resources over
expenditures and other financing uses (300,000)$     352,468            652,468$           

Fund balance
  Beginning 12,690,355$     

  Ending 13,042,823$     
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund by Program

Year ended June 30, 2013

Auxiliary Auxiliary Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under)

Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes -$                  -$                  -$                   

      Tuition chargeback -                    -                    -                     

      Other -                    -                    -                     

Total local government sources -                    -                    -                     

  State governmental sources -                    -                    -                     

  Federal governmental sources -                    -                    -                     

  Student tuition and fees 405,000        355,431        (49,569)          

  Sales, services and rental of facilities 3,193,600     3,148,986     (44,614)          

  Investment earnings -                    -                    -                     

  Other sources 74,300          85,077          10,777           

  Contingency 250,000        -                    (250,000)        
Total revenues 3,922,900     3,589,494     (333,406)        

Expenditures:
Current
    Instruction -                    -                    -                     

    Academic support -                    -                    -                     

    Student services -                    -                    -                     

    Public services -                    -                    -                     

    Institutional support -                    -                    -                     

    Auxiliary services 3,672,900 3,580,825 (92,075)

    Scholarships, student grants, and waivers -                    -                    -                 

    Operation of physical facilities -                    -                    -                 

    Contingency 250,000        -                    (250,000)

Total expenditures 3,922,900     3,580,825     (342,075)        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures -                    8,669            8,669             

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in -                    -                    -                     

  Operating transfers out -                    -                    -                     

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                    -                    -                     

   Bond premium (discount) -                    -                    -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    -                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing resources over
expenditures and other financing uses -$                  8,669            8,669$           

Fund balance

  Beginning 702,675$      

  Ending 711,344$      
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Black Hawk College

Illinois Community College District #503

Statement of Budgetary Comparison - Proprietary Fund by Object

Year ended June 30, 2013

Auxiliary Auxiliary Actual
Fund Fund Over (Under)

Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
  Local governmental sources
      Property taxes -$                  -$                  -$                   

      Tuition chargeback -                    -                    -                     

      Other -                    -                    -                     

Total local government sources -                    -                    -                     

  State governmental sources -                    -                    -                     

  Federal governmental sources -                    -                    -                     

  Student tuition and fees 405,000        355,431        (49,569)          

  Sales, services and rental of facilities 3,193,600     3,148,986     (44,614)          

  Investment earnings -                    -                    -                     

  Other sources 74,300          85,077          10,777           

  Contingency 250,000        -                    (250,000)        
Total revenues 3,922,900     3,589,494     (333,406)        

Expenditures:
Current

Salaries 633,714        585,207        (48,507)          

Benefits 136,752        128,266        (8,486)            

Contractual Services 207,858        165,914        (41,944)          

Supplies & Materials 2,448,075     2,420,665     (27,410)          

Conference & Meeting 235,031        212,450        (22,581)          

Fixed Charges 1,150            9,632            8,482             

Utilities -                    -                    -                     

Capital Outlay -                    38,747          38,747           

Other 10,320          19,944          9,624             

Contingency 250,000        -                    (250,000)

Total expenditures 3,922,900     3,580,825     (342,075)        

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures -                    8,669            8,669             

Other financing sources (uses):
  Operating transfers in -                    -                    -                     

  Operating transfers out -                    -                    -                     

   Bond & Debt Certificate Proceeds -                    -                    -                     

   Bond premium (discount) -                    -                    -                     

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    -                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing resources over
expenditures and other financing uses -$                  8,669            8,669$           

Fund balance

  Beginning 702,675$      

  Ending 711,344$      
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Black Hawk College 
Illinois Community College District #503 
 
Notes to Management Information 
 
 
Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Fund Accounting:  In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of available 
resources, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting as promulgated 
in the ICCB Fiscal Management Manual.  Financial statements by fund, required by the ICCB, are included 
as supplementary information.  This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified 
for accounting and reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. 
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